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Corporate Profile
DA

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 16 December 2002. The shares of
the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on |7 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We operate through our subsidiaries MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd.
(“"MOBI Shenzhen™), MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Ji An) Co,, Ltd. (“MOBI
Jian"), MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co., Ltd. ("MOBI Xian"), MOBI Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited (“MOBI HK"), Xian MOBI New Material and Technology Co., Ltd and
Shenzhen MOBI Communication System Co,, Ltd..

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and base
station Radio Frequency (“RF”) subsystems in China. Our business consists of the design,
manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem and solutions
that are the required components of mobile communication coverage systems, including,
wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA), 3G (TD-SCDMA,
CDMA 2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), 4G (TD-LTE and FDD-LTE), 5G, MIMO Antenna,
satellite communication and microwave transmission networks. We sell our products to
network operators in China and overseas directly for deployment into the networks they
are constructing and operating. We also sell our products to some of the world’s leading
wireless network solution providers who incorporate our products into their wireless
coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they then sell to network

operators worldwide.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long term

relationships with our customers.
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REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY -1 104, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 1902, Mass Mutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Shao Zhiguo (Note 1)

Liao Dong (Note I)

Non-executive Directors
Qu Degian
Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Li Guinian

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lau Wing

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Hu Xiang
Lau Wing

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Zhang Han (Chairman)

Li Tianshu

Li Guinian

Note (1):  On 25 March 2015, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Shao Zhiguo from

executive director and approved Mr. Liao Dong as replacement with effect from 26 March
2015.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Li Tianshu (Chairman)

Zhang Han

Li Guinian

Qu Degian

Yang Dong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Li Tianshu

Zhang Han

Li Guinian

Yang Dong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
China Merchants Bank
[/F, Wenhua Building, Shennan Road East, Shenzhen, China

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.mobi-antenna.com

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR INVESTOR RELATIONS
Telephone: 86-755-86186100 (ext 1317)
Miss Dai Wei and Miss Huang Yilan

Email: irf@mobi-antenna.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 947
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Analysis of revenue by business type Analysis of revenue by customer type
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KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

(All amounts are expressed in RMB'" million unless otherwise stated)

TEMBHE

(BRREHRAI MECEAUAREEE

TTE51)

2014 2013

20145 20134

Revenue U A |,648.5 888.2
Gross profit E7 3758 1939
Profit before taxation IR 107.5 238
Net profit attributable to shareholders PR SR G A 97.6 19.1
Total assets BEE 2,385.7 1,885.3
Net current assets MEEEFHE 651.2 670.1
Net assets attributable to shareholders RERELEEFR 1,124.9 10322
Inventories turnover days FEREXH 120 176
AR turnover days I GSISEE PN 216 297
AJP turnover days FE BR SR8 R & 216 282
Current ratio BN 1.52 1.79
Gearing EXBBEE 10.3% 3.6%
No. of issued shares, million shares BETRHEA (BER) 815.8 8122
Net assets value per share, RMB FREEFEARET) 1.38 127
Basic earnings per share, RMB cents BRERBMARKESD) 11.98 235
Return on average equity TR E & 9.05% 1.87%
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRESE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of MOBI Development Co., Ltd, | am pleased to
present to the shareholders the business development of the Company and its subsidiaries

(the "Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year").

In the immediate past year of 2014, although the global economy remained turbulent,
particularly in Europe and new economies, we believe the communication equipment
industry has begun to recover and accelerate in growth, particularly in China where the
LTE network building began to enter its golden era. By fully leveraging its past experience
in the deployment of high-end technology products such as multi-frequency and multi-
system and LTE in networks in overseas markets, the Group achieved technology
leadership in the domestic LTE market, laying a foundation for realizing optimal return

amidst the general craze of LTE network building.
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OPERATING RESULTS

In 2014, the Group's operating revenue resumed growth. Operating revenue amounted
to approximately RMBI,648.47 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 85.6%,
while net profit amounted to approximately RMB97.58 million, representing a year-on-

year increase of 412.0%; basic earnings per share were approximately RMBO.12.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The Group believes the global telecommunication equipment industry has entered a
new round of the recovery cycle, especially in China. On 4 December 2013, the Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology officially issued TD-LTE4G business licences to
the three largest operators in China, namely China Mobile, China Unicom and China
Telecom.According to media reports, as of January 2015, China Mobile has completed
the construction of over 70,000 4G base stations and the development of 100 million 4G
users, which has far surpassed the development of 3G in speed and scale by China Mobile.
On 27 February 2015, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology officially issued
LTE FDD business licences to China Unicom and China Telecom, which would further

promote the development of 4G in China.

By leveraging its accumulation in the area of multi-frequency and multi-system (MIMO)
technology and LTE product technology for overseas customers, the Group again
occupied the leading position in the domestic industry amidst the new round of the
general craze of 4G in China. Moreover, since TD-LTE is the latest and constantly
advancing 4G technology, with the Group's research and development and customer
advantages, the Group's technological leadership in this area has become even more

apparent and the market share has been further increased.
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In 2014, the Company continued to expand actively in the overseas market for operators,

through the product technology test of a multinational operator in the southern
hemisphere, positive comments were received from customers. This illustrated that the
Company's antenna technology had gained recognition from more and more customers

who were international and multinational operators.

To sum up the above analysis, the Company is one of the world's few RF technology
providers with leading-edge technologies in both TD-LTE and FDD-LTE and is also one
of the few providers that can provide the multi-frequency and multi-system antenna
technology. With prosperous development in mobile internet and the issuance of a
number of 4G business licences in China, the Company believes that the construction
of wireless network in China will enter some consecutive years of golden era, and its
scale is likely to surpass that of 3G. The Company also believes that we are a leader of
4G antenna and RF subsystem product technologies, by leveraging product technologies
and market advantages, our market share further increased in 2014, growth rate in sales
amount surpassed many domestic competitors and will gain more revenue from the

construction of 4G in future.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

In 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Company believes that the popularity of smart terminals has driven
the application of mobile internet into a rapid development pace, the golden era of LTE
has arrived and will continue for a number of years. With the leading position of the
Company in customer channels and product technologies, we will benefit from early

opportunities in the development waves of LTE.
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The Company has made landmark achievements in the course of internationalization and
has also made remarkable breakthroughs in multinational operators, gaining recognition
from major customers in product technologies, quality standards and technical process
experiences. In future, the Company will further develop the markets of overseas network
operators, continuously enter the short lists of multinational and major regional network
operators and continue to increase the Company's share in the global market on a long-

term basis.

Meanwhile, the Company will also actively explore the development of new businesses,
including exclusive network coverage for governmental enterprises and the application of

wireless solutions, to expand new growth momentum for the business of the Company.

I ' would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and customers for
their kind support and trust, and to our Directors and staff for their diligent work. The
Company and the Board will continue to optimise the customer base and structure,
adapt strategies of product differentiation based on technology and costs to enhance the
integrated competitiveness and ensure the stable growth of the operating results of the
Group. The Company strives to become a top class global provider of radio frequency
technology for mobile communication in order to maximise the retumns to its shareholders

and the society.

Hu Xiang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Shenzhen, PRC
25 March 2015
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

When compared with last year, revenue increased significantly by approximately
RMB760.24 million, or approximately 85.6%, to approximately RMB,648.47 million in
2014 (2013: RMB888.23 million).

Sales of antenna system increased significantly by approximately 103.7% to approximately
RMB670.79 million (2013: RMB329.23 million), while sales of base station RF subsystem
increased by approximately 68.1% to approximately RMB835.93 million (2013: RMB497.19
million). In addition, sales of products of coverage extension solution increased significantly

by approximately 129.3% to approximately RMBI41.75 million (2013: RMB61.81 million).

1 0 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2014

KRB OE
L'ON

20145 W AR & FF KR 49 A R ¥ 7.6024
BT (4185.6%) 24 AR 16484718 70(2013
F: AR888231BTT) °

RABERFHHEEBERNBIE NN I037%EL
AR #6707948 7t(2013F : A R #32923
Br)  MEWGIEFRARHEERL ML
68.1% =X ARMESI59IEIL(013F : AR
#49719187T) © IbHN - BERMFEHRE DK
HEBABRIEMA1293%EH AR 14175
BT(2013F - AR¥ 6,181 8TT)



Management Discussion and Analysis

The Company believes that the global telecommunication equipment industry entered a
new recovery cycle, especially in the PRC. On 4 December 2013, the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the PRC issued TD-LTE4G licenses to top three operators
in the PRC, namely China Mobile, China Unicom and China Telecom, which marked
China’s official entry to the 4G era. According to media reports, as of January 2015, China
Mobile had built more than 700,000 4G base stations and developed 100 million 4G
users, which far exceeded the development speed and scale of 3G of China Mobile in the
PRC. On 27 February 2015, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
PRC again issued LTE FDD business licenses to China Unicom and China Telecom, which
will further promote the development of 4G in the PRC.

With the prosperous development of mobile internet and the issuance of various 4G
licenses in the PRC, the Company believes that the construction of wireless network in
the PRC will usher in a golden age that lasts for a couple of years and its size may likely
exceed that of the 3G network. The Company also believes that the Company is a
leader in the 4G antenna and RF subsystem product technology in the PRC and further
expanded its market share in 2014 by leveraging its product technology and market
advantages. With sales growth exceeding that of various domestic competitors, the

Company will gain even greater benefits from the 4G network building in future.

In 2014, sales of 2G products as a percentage of the Company's total revenue declined
to approximately 13.5%, while the percentage of sales of 3G and LTE products increased
significantly to approximately 65.4%.

Antenna system

In 2014, the Company's antenna products maintained a leading position in the domestic
market. This enabled the Group to become one of the few suppliers of high-performance
3G and 4G antennas and maintain a leading share in the TD-LTE4G market, achieving a
growth of more than 100%. In 2014, sales of the Company's TD-LTE/SCDMA antennas

grew significantly by approximately 143.9% as compared to last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWE DT

In addition, the Group continued to actively develop the overseas operator market in
2014 and passed the product technical testing of a multinational operator in the south
hemisphere, winning positive feedback from the customer. This signifies the recognition of
the Group's antenna technology by more multinational international operator customers.
Meanwhile, the Group still maintained its sales scale in Asia Pacific. In 2014, the Group's
sales in Japan and Thailand grew by approximately 712.7% and 5.7% respectively to
approximately RMB30.98 million and RMB71.46 million as compared to last year.

Base station RF subsystem

The Company continued to maintain a leading supplier position among leading global
telecommunication equipment manufacturers. Due to increased demand from global

customers, revenue from the Company's base station RF subsystem in 2014 increased by

approximately 68.1% to approximately RMB835.93 million.
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Management Discussion

‘I

Driven by the 4G network building in the PRC, the Company's revenue from sales of RF
subsystem to domestic equipment manufacturers increased significantly by approximately
95.5% as compared to last year. In addition, the purchasing demand for the Company's
products from Nokia Networks and Alcatel-Lucent increased significantly by approximately
[14.0% and 55.5%, respectively, to approximately RMBI81.43 million and RMB175.27

million.

In 2014, revenue from the Company's 3G and 4G RF subsystem products increased
significantly by approximately 84.6% to approximately RMB564.40 million as compared to

last year.
Coverage extension solution

In 2014, revenue from the Company's coverage extension solutions increased significantly
by approximately 129.3% to approximately RMB[41.75 million, which was the product
category of the Company experiencing the greatest growth in 2014. In particular, revenue
from aesthetic antennas increased by approximately 199.5% to approximately RMB128.38
million, whereas revenue from electric cables, indoor antennas and other products
decreased by approximately 29.5% to approximately RMBI13.37 million. The Company
believes that given the increasing scarcity of sites for base stations and the operation
of Tower Company (£ 5 72 &), the demand for aesthetic antennas by operators will
continue to increase substantially. The Company will decrease the sales of peripheral
products such as electric cables and focus more on the R&D and sales of aesthetic

antenna products, so as to increase the 4G business opportunities in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR D

Customers

The Company recorded a significant growth in sales to most customers in 2014, with
the exception of some customers. The Company also noted that a change in market
pattern resulted in a change in customer revenue structure and the Company's in-depth
cooperation with telecommunication equipment manufacturers and telecommunication
operators allowed the Company to own distinctive competitive strengths in changing

market opportunities.

In 2014, China Mobile’s 4G network building (namely TD-LTE network building) adopted
the “turn-key” procurement method, under which the Company's antenna products
were also sold to telecommunication equipment manufacturer customers (such as ZTE)
who built complete networks for delivery to China Mobile. The in-depth cooperation
with leading global equipment manufacturers allowed the Company to take a first-
mover position in the market. Driven by this, the Company's sales to PRC equipment
manufacturer customers increased by approximately 95.5% to approximately RMB891.82

million in 2014,

In addition, revenue from Nokia Networks and Alcatel-Lucent increased by approximately
[14.0% and 55.5% to approximately RMBI181.43 million and RMBI175.27 million as
compared to last year. The Company believes that the leading market share the Company
has maintained among leading global equipment manufacturer customers and its increasing
involvement in 4G projects provide a very good channel for the Company to achieve

revenue growth over the next few years.

Due to the packing services, the Company's revenue from sales to China Mobile
decreased by approximately 24.8% as compared to last year, while revenue from sales to
China Telecom and China Unicom increased significantly by approximately 526.5% and
257.8%. The Company believes that the 4G network building will provide the Company
with tremendous market opportunities overall. In 2014, China Telecom and China Unicom
only obtained the LTE FDD test license in certain cities and have currently obtained the
LTE FDD business license in 2015. Therefore, the Company has reason to believe that in
2015, China Telecom and China Unicom will see a growth spurt in network building.

1 4 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Company continued to actively develop the overseas operator market in 2014 and
passed the product technical testing of a multinational operator in the south hemisphere,
winning positive feedback from the customer. In the next few years, an important strategic
direction of the Company will be active expansion of overseas operator market in stages
and enhancement of the influence of the Company's brand name among overseas
operators, which, in tum, will have enhancement and positive effects on the operations of

equipment manufacturer customers.

The deployment of the Company's products in the network systems of our diversified

international customers strengthened worldwide awareness of the brand name of MOBI.

Gross profit

In 2014, gross profit of the Group grew for two successive years by growing by
approximately 93.9% to approximately RMB375.84 million (2013: RMB193.86 million), and
gross profit margin increased from approximately 21.8% in 2013 to approximately 22.8%

in this year.

The Company noted that the evolving 4G product technology and the significantly higher
technical sophistication and quality requirements of existing products than previous
products had resulted in a notable decrease in qualified suppliers. This is beneficial for
improving the competition environment and allows the Company to focus more on the
improvement in product technology. The Company believes that as sales of 4G products
as a percentage of the Company's total revenue kept increasing, our consolidated gross

profit margin will also probably continue to improve in the future.
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Other income and expenses

Other income and expenses decreased to approximately RMB2.98 million, which was
mainly attributable to an increase in the loss arising from the disposal of fixed assets of the
Company. In 2014, the Company reduced the production of RF cables and disposed of
part of the RF cable production facilities to concentrate more business resources on the
core business, i.e. antenna system, base station RF sub-system and the aesthetic antenna

business in coverage extension.
Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased from approximately RMB44.89 million in 2013
to approximately RMB77.09 million in 2014, primarily due to increases in salaries, business
expenditure, travel expenses, logistics costs and agency fees resulting from increases in

products sales.
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Administrative expenses THEX

Administrative expenses increased by approximately |7.6% from approximately RMB89.06 TR X B2013F 4 AR #8906 8 7T 3 N
million in 2013 to approximately RMB104.71 million in 2014, mainly due to (1) an KITEARRWVI4FHINARBI47IET &
increase in the average number of employees, staff remuneration and relevant statutory AR () EBBERAFZEHEEAZS  ETH
responsibilities; and (2) an increase in business expenditure, water and electricity charges, MEARBEEEEEEN  RQARAINES
maintenance expenses, taxes, low-value consumption goods, auditing, advising and B KkEE #EE He BEZRE®-
consutting fees of the Company. it BRI REREREMATE -

Research and development costs HE M A

During the year, the Group recognized development costs of approximately RMB10.82 REE AEERIANDARE 0828 TH
million as intangible assets. After the capitalization, development costs increased from BERARBILEE - EXNMuE - BENKH
approximately RMB43.32 million in 2013 to approximately RMB79.47 million in 2014, 2013 F#ARKEA4330 ELEMNZE 2014 FHA
which was mainly attributable to the increase in costs such as salaries for research RETMTETL TERHRARIE - g
and development activities, social insurance premiums, materials costs and low-value RRE  MHKAREEZEDZEREM
consumption goods and the increase in amortization of intangible assets. VAR ST & E B B AR NPT RN o
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Finance Costs

Finance costs increased from approximately RMB0.29 million in 2013 to approximately
RMB10.06 million in 2014, primarily due to the increase in bank borrowings to satisfy the
fund demand from rapid business growth of the Group and the repayment of construction
costs for the new plant in Guangming New District, Shenzhen. In 2014, bank borrowings
of the Company increased by approximately RMB178.82 million to approximately
RMB246.02 million.

Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation increased significantly by approximately 352.4% and recorded a
profit before taxation of approximately RMB107.50 million (2013: a profit before taxation
of approximately RMB23.76 million). Net profit margin before tax charges increased from
approximately 2.7% in 2013 to approximately 6.5% in 2014. This was attributed to a
decline in the expense ratio during the period as a result of sales growth, an improvement
in the gross profit margin and the economy of scale of operation and management of the

Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Taxation

Current income tax expenses increased from approximately RMB4.12 million in 2013
to approximately RMBI3.19 million in 2014. Effective tax rates calculated from the tax
charged to the profit before taxation were approximately 9.2% and 19.8% for 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year 2014 increased substantially by approximately 412.0% and recorded
a profit for the year of approximately RMB97.58 million (2013: a profit for the year of
RMB19.06 million). Our net profit margin was approximately 5.9% in 2014, compared
to approximately 2.1% in 2013. In summary, the increase in our net profit margin was
because the efficiencies brought by the Group's economies of scale and effective cost

control measures.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS
Prospects

Looking forward, the Company will pay attention to both domestic and international
markets simultaneously and will continue to focus on the area of RF technology for
wireless communication, especially on base station RF technology and RF technology for

other wireless communications.

The Company believes that, with the popularity of intelligent terminals, mobile internet
applications have entered into a rapid development period and the LTE golden era has
arrived and will last for a couple of years. With its leading position in customer channels
and product technology, the Company is in place to capture early opportunities riding on

the development waves of LTE.
Customers

The Company adheres to the visionary target of “becoming a global leading provider of
RF technology for mobile communications”, and strives to offer its RF solution to leading

system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators around the world.

The Company is also one of the few domestic technology providers offering RF solutions
to both global system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators, which
enables the Company to maintain a leading edge in product technology and continuous

expansion of customer channels.

In 2014, the Company had a leading share in the LTE market segments, especially the
TD-LTE market where the Company had an absolute leading market share among some
strategic customers. This is attributable to the years of cooperation and trust between the
Company and major equipment manufacturers, complete product lines and prominent
technical strength. During the LTE FDD tender, the Company also secured a leading
share by leveraging its comprehensive capability such as product technology and customer

cooperation, achieving very rapid growth in sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking into 2015, the LTE network building in the PRC may experience leaping-forward
growth. Major equipment manufacturers, especially domestic manufacturers, are expected
to occupy a leading market share, including TD-LTE and LTE FDD networks. The
Company's strategic cooperation with equipment manufacturer customers and operator
customers enables the Company to continue to maintain a leading position in various

aspects of the LTE market.

The Group continued to actively develop the overseas operator market in 2014 and
passed the product technical testing of a multinational operator in the south hemisphere,
winning positive feedback from the customer. This signifies the recognition of the Group's
antenna technology by more multinational intermnational operator customers. Intemational
multinational operators, especially European operators, represent one of the mobile
communication markets that place the largest global procurement orders with most
difficult technological requirements, which is in line with the Company's strategic direction.
Due to a slowdown in the economic growth of Europe and an increase in euro exchange
rate risks, the Company has also made active efforts to enter other regional multinational
operator market in the world. None of the PRC antenna suppliers has provided any
products to the multinational operator market. As such, the Group has already gained a
strong advantage, and it will strive to transform these advantages into sales opportunities,
which will also significantly boost the sales of the Company's antenna products to tur-key

projects of system equipment customers.

In 2014, the Company maintained active progress in the Asia Pacific market. The
Company expects that fast growing opportunities will arise in the emerging markets like
Asia Pacific and Latin America in the next few years. The Company will expand its existing

advantages to achieve rapid growth in bulk sales.
Products

The Company believes that the technology of our LTE products, including TD-LTE and
LTE FDD, has achieved domestic industry-leading level, and is directly comparable with

foreign players.
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Meanwhile, for antenna products, our technology for multi-frequency multi-system
antenna was also developing continuously, and consistently maintained an advanced level.
The Company believes that with increasing investments in LTE network, the demand for
station sites will increase further as the coverage radius of LTE base station is shorter. In
addition, on 15 July 2014, China Communications Facilities Services Corporation Limited
was officially established and officially renamed as “China Tower Company Limited (#
BIERNDBBRAE])" in September 2014, and the demand for “multi-network stations
will be more obvious in future. The Company's LTE RET and multi-frequency multi-
system technology also achieved a further significant breakthrough in 2014 and delivered
outstanding performance in the tests performed by customers. It is believed to perform
more excellently in market completion in the future. Meanwhile, the Mobile World
Congress (MWC) convened in Barcelona in March 2015 proposed the application of 5G.
The Company has cooperated with leading equipment manufacturer customers in the
PRC to develop a 64-port 3D/Massive MIMO antenna, which is exactly one of the core

5G technologies. The multiple antenna technology is used to exponentially increase the

wireless spectrum efficiency, enhance network coverage and system capacity. The antenna
has been used in the pre-commercial test of China Mobile’s TD-LTE 3D/Massive MIMO

base station in Shenzhen, which was also the first of its kind in the world, in November
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2014. The Company believes that PRE-5G will be widely applied in the near next few
years. The Company's integrated antenna technology has enabled the Company to stay

ahead in the domestic 5G technology sector.

For RF subsystem products, apart from developing various new products for equipment
customers in 2014, the Company also accelerated the development of next generation
base station RF subsystem products, which were more integrated, more compact and
lightweight. In addition, the Company also expanded the scope of development for
outdoor RF subsystem products, such as outdoor filters for operators, and combined with
antenna system products and other products to provide a one-stop tower-top solutions

for customers.

On coverage extension products, the Company made important progress on the
integration of aesthetic antenna and multi-frequency multi-system antenna technologies.
The Company believes that given the increasing scarcity of sites for base stations and
the operation of Tower Company, the demand for aesthetic antennas by operators will
continue to increase substantially and the Company's product technology will help it

achieve a leading position.
Conclusion

The Company is one of the few one-stop solution providers of RF technology for global
network operators and network solution providers in the PRC. It has a wide range of well-
known customers and diversified income sources, which contributes to the positive and

stable growth of the Company.

The Company believes that the telecommunication equipment industry will hopefully
enter into a new growth period as the 4G network continues to develop over the
next few years. The Company and the Board will continue to optimise the size
and mix of customer base, adopt competition strategies of differentiation based on
technology and cost advantages, maximise the market opportunities in 3G, LTE and next
generation wireless technologies. The Company will also strive to enhance its integrated
competitiveness to ensure the sound and stable growth of the operating results of the

Group and to create value for maximising returns to its shareholders and the society.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

We have funded our operations and capital requirements from cash generated from
our operations, trade credit from our suppliers and short-term bank borrowings. Our
primary uses of cash have been for our increased working capital requirements, capital
expenditures on purchases of production equipment and acquisition of land use rights for

our real properties in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current assets of approximately RMB651.15
million (2013: approximately RMB670.1 | million) including inventories of approximately
RMB451.37 million (2013: approximately RMB386.40 million), trade and notes and bills
receivable of approximately RMBI,138.72 million (2013: approximately RMB808.01
million) and trade and bills payable of approximately RMB850.19 million (2013:
approximately RMB656. 13 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group maintained an effective management of its working capital. For the year ended
31 December 2014, average inventories turnover, average receivables turnover and
average payables turnover are approximately 120 days (2013: 176 days), 216 days (2013:
297 days) and 216 days (2013: 282 days) respectively. We offer credit terms generally
accepted in the antennas and base station RF subsystems manufacturing industry to our
trade customers. In general, the average credit period for local network operators is

longer than global network operators and solution providers.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a pledged bank balance of approximately
RMB48.99 million (2013: approximately RMB25.01 million), cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB212.68 million (2013: approximately RMB229.75 million) and recorded
bank borrowings of approximately RMB246.02 million (2013: approximately RMB67.19
million). The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) decreased from
approximately 1.79 times as at 31 December 2013 to approximately .52 times as at
31 December 2014. The gearing ratio (bank borrowings divided by total assets) was
approximately 10.3% as compared with a gearing ratio of approximately 3.6% as at 3|
December 2013. The interest rates on the Group's bank borrowings are designated in

both fixed rate and floating basis at prevailing market rates.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group has a solid and stable financial position
and adequate resources to support the necessary operating funding requirement and

foreseeable capital expenditure.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

RMB is the functional currency of the Group. Currencies other than RMB expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. We have foreign currency sales and purchases and
certain trade receivables and bank balances are denominated in USD, Euro and HKD.
We currently do not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management

monitors and will consider hedging of foreign currency exposure when the need arises.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 3| December 2014, the Group had approximately 3,798 staff. The total staff
costs amounted to approximately RMB286.26 million for the year ended 2014. The
remuneration of the Group's employees is determined on the basis of their responsibilities
and industry practices. Regular training is provided to improve the skills and expertise of
relevant staff. The Group also grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible

staff based on their performance.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, bank balances of approximately RMB48.99 million was mainly
pledged to bank to secure the bills payables of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIVIDEND

To share the fruitful results of the Group among all the shareholders, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04 per share out of distributable
reserve of the Company in respect of the year ended 3| December 2014. The date of
closure of the register of members of the Company regarding the entitlement of final
dividend will be published in due course. The proposed final dividend will be paid in
or before July 2015 following approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM").
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 20
May 2015 (“2015 AGM"), the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 18 May 2015 to Wednesday, 20 May 2015, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2015 AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged
for registration with the Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 May 2015.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the final dividend, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28 May 2015 to
Friday, 29 May 2015, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
transfer documents should be lodged for registration with the Company's share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 7/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 27 May 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high standards of corporate governance
to maximize the operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder returns of
the Company. The Company adopted sound governance and disclosure practices and
continued to upgrade internal control system, strengthen risk control management and

reinforce the corporate governance structure.

Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules") during the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2014.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board comprises seven Directors, including two executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The following sets

out the composition of the Board, by category of Directors:

Executive Directors:
Hu Xiang (Chairman)
Shao Zhiguo (Note 1)
Liao Dong (Note I)

Non-executive Directors:
Qu Degian
Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Li Guinian

The Board's composition demonstrates a balance of core competence with regard to the
business of the Group so as to provide effective leadership and the required expertise to
the Group. The executive Directors and senior management have extensive management
experience in the wireless communication antennas and base station RF subsystems
industry. The biographical details and experience of the Directors and senior management

are set out on pages 41 to 48 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships among

members of the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and is entrusted with the
responsibility to supervise the overall management of the business, including establishing
and overseeing the Group's strategic development, business plans, financial objectives,
capital investment proposals and assumes the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing its
business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group's businesses to the

executive Directors and members of senior management of the Group.
Note (1):  On 25 March 2015, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Shao Zhiguo from
executive director and approved Mr. Liao Dong as replacement with effect from 26 March
2015.
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by
business needs. During the year ended 31 December 2014, four Board meetings, two
audit committee (the “Audit Committee™) meetings, one remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) meeting and one nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) meeting were convened. Details of attendance of Board meetings of each of
the members of the Board are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each Director at least |4 days prior to
the meeting, whereby the Directors can put forward his proposed items into the agenda.
The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then circulated to the Directors not less
than 3 days before a Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to make an informed

decisions. For other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as

set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Hu Xiang is both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company, responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development directions for the
Group and for the daily management of the business of the Group, implementation of the
policies, business objectives and plans set by the Board and is accountable to the Board

for the overall operation of the Group.

30 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2014

EExEEl

EZeRBEBTECHRERNEHEE -
BZE014F12A31BLEEE HEFAMK
Exeed —AERZE®(ERZE
ghew —RFMEzEe((FmEse))
eRk—KReZEe((REZ8e)) e
FoEEEENEBHEEZERR LR
RTIXEESZGRLREBR] -

ESeTHeRNASNERANED 148
MXTRES UREFRUEZFEMRA
2 SHBREREREFEXMHERES
SERHHHTIRIBRTES  IER
ZEHMABERAE FHEFSEMSHE &
BRHAERS -

BYFHITES

BEWI4FNA3NBLEEE EF€—H
B ETHANEATE  EEEL=EBIHE
WTES HPh—RAREEEXERYE
ATSERE M A B IR A o

ARBRCWBE BB IFRITESTHLNF
BB RERE - ADRRRAFIEBEIULIFNIT
EEONE LWRAEBGRAETEBEL
mtssl - AMEBL -

ERRTHAR

RARERE  HAREEEERERAAQT
THEH  BERERBWEEESGUT
EEBREREBERARNTBEAEER
TEBER EREFSHTEOHE 25
BEREEURASERBEENESSR
£,



Corporate Governance Report

Code Provision A.2.1

This code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Currently, Mr. Hu Xiang
is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hu is one of the
founders of the Group and has extensive experience in the telecommunication industry.
Given the current stage of development of our Group, the Board believes that vesting
the two roles in the same person provides our Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of our Group's business
strategies. We shall nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the

prevailing circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is three years. Under the Company's Articles of Association,
one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting provided that every Director

shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Remuneration
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Li Tianshu,
Zhang Han and Li Guinian and two non-executive Directors, namely Qu Degjan and Yang

Dong. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Li Tianshu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its
objective of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group's business successfully. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the Directors and
senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration packages.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:
. formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

0 recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration of

Directors and senior management;
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P determination of the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,

including benefits in kind and compensation payments;

0 review and approval of the compensation arrangements in connection with any
loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal for

misconduct to executive Directors and senior management; and
. determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance.
No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the Company’s remuneration policies, the terms of the service
contracts and the performance of all executive Directors and senior management. Details
of attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings of each of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out in note |2 to

the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Li Tianshu, Zhang Han and Li Guinian, one non-executive Director, namely Yang Dong
and one executive Director, namely, Hu Xiang. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Hu Xiang. Currently all new appointments to the Board will be considered by the Board

whose deliberations are based on the following criteria:

0 possession of core competencies, including but not limited to financial literacy,
that are appropriate to the Company's business and complement the skills and

competencies of the existing Directors on the Board,

. ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively;
and
. possession of a good track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/
organizations.
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During the year ended 3| December 2014, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Details of attendance of Nomination Committee meeting of
each of the members of the Nomination Committee are meeting of each of the members
of the Nomination Committee set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit Committee comprises
all the independent non-executive Directors. Zhang Han is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for communication between the Directors,
the external auditors and chief financial officer as regards their duties relating to, among
other things, financial and other reporting, internal controls and external audits and
to assist the Board in fuffilling its responsibilities by providing independent view and

supervision of financial reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge their duties.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

0 to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of

external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of such appointments;

0 to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

0 to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external auditor for non-

audit services;

0 to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and interim reports and
the auditor’s report to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced

assessment of the Group's financial position;
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P to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

. to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an effective internal

control system; and

. to review the external auditor's management letter and any questions raised by the

auditor to the management and the management’s response.

Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December
2014. The Audit Committee reviewed, together with the management and the external
auditors, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and statutory compliance.
In addition to reviewing the Group's internal control system, the Audit Committee also
reviewed the independence of the external auditors and approved the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors. Details of attendance of Audit Committee
meetings of each of the members of the Audit Committee are set out in “Attendance of

Individual Directors at Meetings” below.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The Code Provision stipulates that the board should meet regularly for at least 4 times

a year at approximately quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual Directors

at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the

Nomination Committee, the annual general meeting during the year ended 3| December

2014, respectively, is set forth in the table below:

Name of Director

Hu Xiang

Shao Zhiguo (Note 1)

Liao Dong (Note I)

Qu Degian

Yang Dong

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Li Guinian

EEns

a2l

ARSI (M 1)

BR(MEE )

JEfR%

R

FREF
B

FRE

Board
Exg

4/4
4/4
N/A
ek
4/4

3/4

4/4
4/4

4/4

Remuneration

Committee

FHEES

N/A
i
N/A

N/A
i
11

171

171

Note (1):  On 25 March 2015, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Shao Zhiguo from
executive director and approved Mr. Liao Dong as replacement with effect from 26 March

2015.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. From time to time, Directors are provided with written
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills. The Directors had fulfilled the

relevant requirements under A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code during the year

ended 3| December 2014.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

Pursuant to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than
I5 hours of relevant professional training in each financial year. The Company Secretary
is Mr. Lau Wing and has taken more than |5 hours of relevant professional development

during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”), without prejudice to
and in addition to complying with the applicable requirements set forth in the Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations, the Company has since |7 December 2009,
the date on which its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange adopted a stringent system
to avoid potential conflict of interests respecting transactions (“Relevant Transactions”) in
which any Directors are interested in, and transactions with any of our connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any company in which the controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or its shareholders, individually
or collectively, owns a direct or indirect equity interest of 10% or above (including
transactions with ZTE Corporation, Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd, Shenzhen
Zhongxingxindi Tongxin Qicai Co,, Ltd,, and Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co,, Ltd.)

(“Relevant Companies”), as follows:

() Any Relevant Transactions be approved by way of a resolution passed by a majority
of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, provided
that any non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director interested
in the transactions in question will declare his or her interest and will abstain from

voting on such matters;

(2)  Any Director has a conflict of interest will not participate or be involved in matters

relating to the Relevant Transactions;
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(3)  An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) comprising the chief financial
officer and the deputy financial officer of the Company has been established to
monitor, review and manage all Relevant Transactions, and to prepare semi-annual
report in relation to the execution of the Relevant Transactions (“Semi-annual

Report") for the supervisory committee’s (the “Supervisory Committee”) review;

(4)  The Supervisory Committee comprising three independent non-executive
Directors (each of whom shall not have any interest in any transaction under
consideration by the Supervisory Committee and shall not be in a position of
conflict of interest when acting in such capacity) has been set up, among other
things, to supervise the Executive Committee, review and approve the terms and
conditions of continuing connected transactions and Relevant Transactions, devise
and review rules and guidelines for the Executive Committee to follow, review
Semi-annual Report from the Executive Committee, report its findings to the Board
and give recommendations to the Board to ensure that the Relevant Transactions
will be entered into in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole;

and

(5)  The Board will disclose the decisions, findings and recommendations on the
transactions reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Supervisory Committee

in the Company's interim and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, two meetings were held by the Supervisory
Committee to review the report on Relevant Transactions in respect of the sales and
purchase entered into by the Group with the Relevant Companies pepared by the
Executive Committee. As reported by the Supervisory Committee, (i) it had reviewed
and approved the master agreements entered into by the Group and the Relevant
Companies and considered the terms and conditions therein were fair and reasonable; (ii)
it had reviewed the supplier procurement bidding documents and intemal procurement
procedures of the Group; (iii) it had devised and reviewed rules and guidelines for
Executive Committee and the Executive Committee had followed accordingly; and (iv)
it had reviewed the report submitted by the Executive Committee. The Supervisory
Committee considered Relevant Transactions conducted during the review period were
in line with the respective master agreements and the intemal procedures of the Group,
were on fair and normal commercial terms and there was no other matter that needs to

be brought to the attention of the Board and shareholders of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants (“Deloitte”), the external
auditors of the Company, were responsible for providing services in connection with the

audit of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total remuneration in respect of audit services

provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted to approximately RMB2.08 million.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the view) that,
subject to shareholders” approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte be re-appointed as
the external auditors of the Company for 2015.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance, position and prospects. Management provides such
explanation and information to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the

matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of
the Group and for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with

applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner within the limits of three

months after the end of the financial period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls
on financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to safeguard shareholders’

investment and the Group's assets.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control system and believes that, such system is sufficient in providing reasonable
assurances that the Group's assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use
or disposition, transactions are properly authorized and proper accounting records are
maintained. The Group has applied an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by the Group and this process includes updating the
system of internal controls when there are changes to business environment or regulatory

guidelines.

38 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2014

G
ARRINEZEANIZE) » WEBRA GEHAI1T
([E% ) (Xt A RERHAEZE
SEHZ014F12A31 BIEFEMBRE
2 IR o

HZEW4F AN BIEFE  2HAKE
BIRMZEME 2 HaEN 5 AR 208
B

ERLZEBENESCHBEMESSREFR
RREERRBFASER  BEEHE
ARATF2015FEINEAZ BIAD o

B %5 B 4R
EXSREURARGANTA2EAEA
SENRA WRARAR - ERERHERE
RER  EEESHFMEZZEELAB
EREI

EXZQNMBRENBEARRAEBENBR
xRV BHRABAMATRER G E
A% -

AKERE EMRANETER Y B HRR L
B=EARRBLMFERE

MR EE 2
%%Q%%Eﬁﬁ%&%ﬁWW%ﬁ%%@
Bmat AR - L E RGBT - =y
Km g E R e %hh%&ﬁ&$%l
BE-

EXeCRITMEASBEAREZRRN
R BEZHERHEERREAEEEE
TEREAERIEEMIIBER 5%
EEREAZERTFEHTE AREERK
PR EMRFER - FHE RIS R BMY
ERERER  BREZEREXEERS
AEREHAEEFE -



Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate

resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual Directors for shareholders' consideration and voting.

Resolutions put forward at our shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant

to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of our Company and of

the Stock Exchange after each shareholders” meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 79 of our Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall also be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
An extraordinary general meeting may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting
to be held within a further 30 Days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to

them by the Company.
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(i)  Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general meetings may
achieve so by means of convening an extraordinary general meeting following the

procedures set out in paragraph (i) above.

As regards the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

Director, they are available on our Company's website (www.mobi-antenna.com).

(iii)  Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquires to our Company by addressing them to the Company Secretary by mail at

Room 1902, Mass Mutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 December, 2014, there has not been any change in the

Company's constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group establishes and maintains different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports, information of the
Stock Exchange, a corporate website, and general and investor meetings. The Group is
going to report to its shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular dialogue with

investors.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each

substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang, aged 61, is an executive Director, the chairman of the board of Directors and
the chief executive officer of our Company. He is also a director, the chief executive
officer and legal representative of MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a director of
MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr. Hu was appointed a Director on 19 December 2002.
Mr. Hu was an engineer. Mr. Hu graduated from the Xian Infrastructure University (now
Xian University of Finance and Economics) majoring in radio communication in August
1981. During the period from 1972 to September 1981, Mr. Hu worked in the hydraulic
transmission and control department of the Northwest Industrial University. Mr. Hu
then served as chief of the planning and supply department at Shenzhen Zhongxingxin
Tongxun Shebei Co,, Ltd. for the period from 1992 to 1999. Mr. Hu joined our Group in
August 1999. Mr. Hu was a director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from
June 2002 to June 2007 and the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong
Shebei Co,, Ltd. from March 2000 to September 2007. He is a shareholder of Fangyi

Collaboration Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Shao Zhiguo, aged 51, is an executive Director and is also our executive vice president
in research and development and quality, MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian respectively.
Mr. Shao graduated from the Northwest Telecommunications Engineering College (now
Xidian University) with a bachelor degree in wireless equipment structure design in
1984. In 1998, Mr. Shao obtained a master degree in systematic engineering from Xi'an
Electronic Technology University. During the period of 1984 to 1999, Mr. Shao has held
such positions as engineer and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey
and Control Technology Institute. Mr. Shao has over |5 years experience of research and
development in the area of telecommunication measurement and control technology and
has received a second class award in Scientific Technology Advancement of the Ministry
of Machine Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Shao is a senior member of the Chinese
Institute of Electronics. Mr. Shao was a director of Kang Cheng from June 2002 to June

2007. Mr. Shao joined our Group in August 1999.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian, aged 52, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Qu was appointed a Director on 19 December 2002. Mr.
Qu graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of Economics
and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in June 1992 and he further obtained the
qualification as an accountant in the PRC in October 1994. From June 1993 to April 2003,
Mr. Qu was the chief of ZTE Corporation’s accounting and auditing centre and the deputy
chief of its financial centre. In April 2003, Mr. Qu was appointed as the deputy general
manager of Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd. and since September 2007,
has been the general manager of Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd.. Mr.
Qu joined our Group in December 2002. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration

Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Yang Dong, aged 43, is a non-executive Director and a director of MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI
Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Yang was appointed a Director on | January 2006. Mr. Yang is
a charterholder of the Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Mr. Yang graduated from
Tsinghua University in 1995 with a bachelor degree in computer science. In 1997, Mr.
Yang obtained a master degree in accounting from the University of Southern California,
United States. Mr. Yang has been working for SAIF Advisors Limited, an investment
advisor to SAIF Management Il Limited and is currently a partner at an affiliate of SAIF
Advisors Ltd. Mr. Yang was a director of a Nasdaq listed company, Perfect World Co,
Ltd. (stock code: PWRD) during the period from September 2006 to July 2008 and is
currently an independent director of it. Mr. Yang joined our Group in January 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li was appointed a
Director on | July 2007. Mr. Li graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1976 majoring
in computational Mathematics. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Li studied business economics
at Universitat Mannheim in Germany and pursued a doctoral degree at Universitat
Mannheim in 1988. From 1988 to 1995, Mr. Li worked as a research assistant in the
business economics department of Universitat Mannheim. During the period from March
1995 to September 1995, Mr. Li worked in Germany for Friatec Aktiengesellschaft, an
international manufacturing enterprise, and was designated to become the future managing
director for China. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Li first worked for KSB Aktiengesellschaft,
an international machinery manufacturing enterprise, as the assistant to the chairman of
the management board of KSB and then became the chief representative of its Beijing
Representative Office. During the period from 1998 to 2002, Mr. Li took the position of
regional director of Messer, an international chemical manufacturing enterprise, responsible
for its business development in Northern China as well as the operation, sales and profits
of its joint ventures and wholly owned companies in the Northem China region. During
that period, Mr. Li also served as the general manager of Messer North China Industrial
Gas Co, Ltd. and the chairman to the board of Tianjin Messer Gas System Co,, Ltd. Since
2002, Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Delintech Technology Co., Ltd, a
technical promotion service provider and sales service provider. Since 27 March 2011,
Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Zhong Biao Fang Yuan Anti-counterferting
Technology Co. Ltd. Mr. Li has valuable experience in international corporate management

and enterprise resources planning (ERP). Mr. Li joined our Group in July 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

Zhang Han, aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009 and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Zhang is currently an
independent director of Perfect World Co,, Ltd. (stock code: PWRD), a Nasdaq listed
company, where Mr. Zhang has also served as a member of its audit committee since
July 2008. The responsibilities of such role include overseeing the accounting and financial
reporting processes as well as extemal and internal audit of the Company. Mr. Zhang
received his bachelor's degree in chemistry from the Peking University in 1985. He
later obtained an EMBA degree from the China Europe International Business School
in 2004. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Zhang worked at Beijing Fiber Reinforced Plastic
Research & Design Institute. Mr. Zhang was the Manager in the securities department
of Shenzhen Shekou China Merchants Co,, Ltd. from 1989 to 1994. Mr. Zhang was the
deputy manager at the finance department of China National Technical Import & Export
Corporation, and also the general manager of Shanghai CNTIC Investment Advisory
Co, Ltd. from 1994 to 1998. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Zhang served as assistant to the
general manager, investment director and fund manager at Penghua Fund Management
Co, Ltd, a fund management company in China. Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general
manager of Rongtong Fund Management Co,, Ltd,, a fund management company in
China, from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Zhang also served as the general manager of Great Wall
Fund Management Co., Ltd, a fund management company in China, from 2004 to 2005.
Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of Share Capital Partners Ltd, a Chinese venture capital
firm. Mr. Zhang has built up his experience in conducting due diligence work in respect
of the financial performance, management and corporate government quality of various
companies and conducting financial analysis of listed companies throughout his various

tenures in the investment industry. Mr. Zhang joined our Group on 25 November 2009.
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Li Guinian, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on [0
September 2013. Mr. Li graduated from the School of Chemistry Engineering of Hefei
University of Technology with a degree in Polymer Chemistry. In 2002, Mr Li obtained
a master degree in Business and Administration from Honolulu University of USA. He
received “Technological Progress Award in 1994" from Planning Commission of Anhui
Province for his study findings “Conditions for Economic Equilibrium of Nation and
Investment Strategies”( Bl R4S 735 %1 80 5 14 2 32 & %13K). He received Fourth Prize
in “Anhui Technological Innovation™ in 1998 and Second Prize in “Bengbu Technological
Innovation” for his “Research Report About Industrial Structure Adjustment of Bengbu”
(HRTMEXABAZMRIERE). He received an “Award of Outstanding Article” by
Advanced Study Course for Enterpreneur of Peking University for his article “Discourse
on Harmony between Taoism and Managment of Modern Enterprises” (7 i & X &
BEBRPEEEMNRE) composed in October 2012. Mr Li was awarded “Labour
Model” at municipal level in 2000-2003 by the municipal government of Bengabu and
“Luban Award for Construction of China" in respect of his leadership in the construction
of Bengbu Convention & Exhibition Centre ($#Fi2& &) in 2005. Mr. Li has served
as the managing director and a general manager of Bengbu Investment Group Co,, Ltd
(ERIEEEEBMRAF]). Currently, he is a director of Guoyuan Agricultural Insurance
Co, Ltd. (BITTRERBIRMDBR A A]) and the vice-chariman of Anhui New Energy
Association (ZHIFTEEIRIHE ). He is also a director of the board of Hefei University of
Technology. Mr. Li joined our Group on 10 September 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Liao Dong, aged 44, is the executive vice-president of the Company (Note: appointed as
executive Director and chief operating officer of the Company with effect from 26 March
2015), which responsible for marketing. Mr. Liao graduated from Chongging University
with a doctoral degree in mechanical manufacturing and its automation in 1999. Mr. Liao
had worked at ZTE Kangxun Telecom Co,, Ltd. during the period from July 1999 to
February 2001 and at ZTE Corporation president’ office during the period from February
2001 to March 2003. Mr. Liao joined the Group in March 2003.

Kong Weitong, aged 51, is the executive vice-president of the Company, which
responsible for operation, manufacturing and supply chain. Mr. Kong obtained a bachelor's
degree in economics from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in August 1998. Mr. Kong worked
at the China Aerospace Corporation from 1982 to 2002 in the areas of accounting and
audit, where he was appointed as an accountant in 1992 and as a senior accountant in
1999. Mr. Kong became a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified

Public Accountants in 2006. Mr. Kong joined the Group in May 2002.

Chen Zhaojun, aged 38, is the executive vice-president and chief financial officer of
the Company, and is responsible for the financial management of MOBI Jian and MOBI
Xian. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Xiamen University in
July 1999, and later obtained a master's degree in economics from Xiamen University in
July 2002. And later obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2014. Mr. Chen worked as Senior Project
Manager in the Investment Department of ZTE Corporation from 2003 to 2004. Mr.
Chen has been a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC since 2006. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in July 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management

Chen Zhilong, aged 36, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading
the business of the research and development of antenna products. Mr. Chen Zhilong
graduated from School of Electronic Information, Wuhan University in 2003 with
a bachelor of science degree in wireless physics. He joined the Group in 2003 and
successively held the posts of electrical engineer, research and development project

manager, division head and the general manager of the antenna product business division.

Ye Rong, aged 35, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading the
business of the research and development of RF products. Mr. Ye Rong graduated from
Xidian University in 2005 with a master of science degree in electromagnetic field and
microwave technology. He joined the Group in 2005 and successively held the posts of
electrical engineer, research and development project manager, division head and the

general manager of the radio-frequency product business division.

Han Jianrong, aged 54, is the executive vice-president of the Company, which responsible
for die casting, sheet metal fabrication and antennas production. Mr. Han graduated from
Northwestern Polytechnical University with a bachelor degree in foundry engineering in
1982. Mr. Han has over 20 years of experience in production. Mr. Han was appointed
as an engineer at Xi'an Aerospace Engine Corporation and No. 771 institute of China
Aerospace Corporation in 1989 and 1993 respectively, and was awarded his professional
qualification as senior engineer by China Aerospace Corporation in 1997. Mr. Han joined

the Group in February 2000.

Zhou Lingbo, aged 34, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading
the business of administration and personnel. Ms. Zhou Lingbo graduated from the
department of law of Nanjing University in 2004 with a LLB degree. She joined the Group
in 2004 and successively held the posts of director of the infrastructure office and director

of the president’s office.

An Liang, aged 35, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading the
business of the domestic operator market. Mr. An Liang graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University in 2002 with a bachelor's degree in international finance. He
joined the Group in 2002 and successively held the posts of sales manager for various

provinces in China and the general manager of the northern marketing region in China.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Lau Wing, aged 42, is our deputy financial officer, authorized representative and company
secretary. He is also the deputy financial officer of financial centre of MOBI Shenzhen.
He is responsible for our company secretarial, financial and accounting management and
internal audit affairs. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor's degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1996, and later obtained a master's degree in business
administration (financial service) in 2005. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lau has over 18 years of experience in finance,
accounting, auditing and company secretarial matters. Mr. Lau had held senior financial

positions in several listed companies. Mr. Lau joined our Group in May 201 1.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 3| December 2014.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION
The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16
December 2002.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 17 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries comprise the research, development, manufacture and sale of antenna system,
base station radio frequency subsystem and products of coverage extension solution.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during

the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state of affairs of

the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 67 to 152.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
29 May 2015.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION BEEREE

The following is a 5 years summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group TEREBAAEERFREAMBFEENERNR
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Prospectus and the audited financial EENBE HABRERREEZMBER
statements. XK o

Year ended 3| December

BZ1NA3BLLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
20145 2013F 20126 20114 2010
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRE ARBTRT ARETT ARBTRT ARETRT

RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 1,648,466 888,226 687,764 798,060 1,041,420
Profit(loss) before taxation BRI (&518) 107,497 23,76 (43279) 52,899 98,955
Taxation R (9.921) (4,700) 3,807 (10,541) (14,850)
Profit(loss) for the year FANE(ER) 97,576 19,061 (39,472) 42,358 84,105
Profit(loss) and the total ARAEE ARIGH 97,576 19,061 (39,472) 42,358 84,105
comprehensive income FEMEER) &
(expenses) for the year S ONGERL LS

attributable to owners

of the Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Non-current assets FERBDEE 481,154 370,467 297,668 268,133 203,819
Current assets MENEE 1,904,525 1,514,800 1,257,382 1 400,567 493,501
Current liabilities mEaE (1,253,374) (844,690) (537,328) (596,657) (655,857)
Non-current liabilities FEnRBERE (7,384) (8346) 6712) 4421) (3.569)
Net assets EEFHE 1,124,921 1032231 1011010 1,067,622 1,037,894
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT NE - BMERRE

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year FN - AKENE  BERRENEDHE
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. BN IR 15 o
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

On |3 January 2010, 18,443,000 over-allotment shares of USD0.00000| each of the
Company at price of HKD3.38 per share were issued pursuant to the underwriting
agreement of the IPO of the Company. Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on |
June 2010, a bonus issue of 72,446,099 shares of USD0.00000| each of the Company is
issued to the persons whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on | June 2010 on the basis of one share for every ten shares held

on | June 2010. These new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all aspect.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the year

are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to RMB541.0 million. This amount includes the Company’s share premium account
of RMB538.8 million at 31 December 2014, which may be distributed provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In the year under review, revenue attributed to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 88.3% of the total revenue for the year and revenue attributed to the

largest customer accounted for 53.9%.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year is less than 25.1%.

The Directors interests in a major customer and suppliers are set out in the paragraph

headed “Directors’ Interest in Contracts” on page 60 of this report.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Shao Zhiguo (Note 1)
Liao Dong (Note [)

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian
Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Li Guinian

Under the provisions of the Articles, all of the Directors are subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles, Mr. Hu Xiang, an executive Director, Mr.
Qu Degian and Mr. Yang Dong, non-executive Directors, will retire and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

In accordance with Article |14 of the Articles, Mr. Liao Dong, an executive Director will

retire from office and, being eligible has offered himself for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board still considers

each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent from the Company.

Note (1):  On 25 March 2015, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Shao Zhiguo from
executive director and approved Mr. Liao Dong as replacement with effect from 26 March
2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 41 to 48 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Except for Mr. Liao Dong, an executive Director, has entered into a service agreement
with our Company commencing from 26 March 2015 for a term of three years, each of
the executive Director and non-executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company commencing from |7 December 2012 for a term of three years,

respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Han and Mr. Li Guinian
has entered into a letter of appointment with our Company for a term of three years
commencing from |7 December 2012 and 10 September 2013 respectively (except for
Mr. Li Tianshu whose engagement with us commenced on | July 2007) and renewable by

mutual agreement on annual basis.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
Directors’ emoluments are reviewed by Remuneration Committee with reference to

Directors' duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

5 4 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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SHARE OPTION

Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out in note 26 to the financial

statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share option scheme during

fERE
ARAIEBRAET S FBERM B REM
26 °

the year:
*Exercise price Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during asat end
Name Option type Dateofgrant  *8MRITHEE  Exercisable period of the year the year theyear  of the year
#e BREER RHAH (AEH) A{TESE ENHATE  FARE  FRETE FREATE
Directors:
£
Shao Zhiguo 2013 option A 23.122013 .09 23122015 - 22.12.2023 270,000 = = 270,000
W5 WI3FEBIEA
2013 option B 23122013 .09 23122016 - 22.12.2023 270,000 = = 270,000
WI3FERES
2013 option C ~ 23.122013 .09 23122017 - 22.12.2023 360,000 = = 360,000
WI3FHBEC
Qu Degian 2013 option A 23122013 1.09 23.12.2015 - 22.12.2023 150,000 — — 150,000
% WI3FHRBEA
2013 option B 23122013 1.09 23.12.2016 - 22.12.2023 150,000 — — 150,000
WI3FHMRHEL
2013 option C ~ 23.122013 .09 23122017 - 22.12.2023 200,000 = = 200,000
0I3FERIEC
Yang Dong 2013 option A 23.122013 .09 23122015 - 22.12.2023 150,000 = = 150,000
ES 1 WI3FEBIEA
2013 option B 23122013 .09 23122016 - 22.12.2023 150,000 = = 150,000
WI3FERES
2013 option C ~ 23.122013 .09 23122017 - 22.12.2023 200,000 = = 200,000
0I3FBBEC
Sub-total 1,900,000 = = 1,900,000
B e
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*Exercise price Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during asatend
Name Option type Dateofgrant ~ *BMITHEE  Exercisable period of the year the year the year of the year
e BRESR RHAH (AR%) ATEHE ENEATE  FARE  FREOE FREATE
Other participants:
A% :
Participants 2005 option 3182005 0.6655 3182006 - 3082015 280,000 = (180,000) 100,000
28% 2005 FRRE
Participants 20130ption A 23122013 1.09 23122015 - 22.122023 = = = =
28% WI3FHBIEA
2013 option B 23122013 1.09 23122016 - 22.122023 = = = o
WI3FERESR
2013 option C ~ 23.122013 .09 23122017 - 22.122023 = = — —
0I3FEREC
Sub-total: 280,000 = (180,000) 100,000
NG
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*Exercise price Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during asat end
Name Option type Dateofgrant ~ *8MITHEE  Exercisable period of the year the year the year of the year
#E BRESR RHAH (AR%) ATEHE ENEATE  FAREM  FRETE FRERTE
Other employees:
AftfES :
Employees 2005 option 3182005 0.6655 3182006 - 30.82015 6,660,750 = (3440500) 3220250
&8 2005 FRRIE
Employees 2013 option A 23.122013 .09 23122015 - 22122023 12,372,000 = = 12,372,000
&8 WI3FBBEA
2013 option B 23122013 1.09 23122016 - 22.122023 12,372,000 — — 12,372,000
0I35EREL
20130ptionC 23122013 1.09 23122017 - 22.122023 16,496,000 = = 16,496,000
013FHBHEC
Sub-total: 47,900,750 = (3440500) 44460250
It
Total: 50,080,750 = (3620500) 46,460,250
5t

The weighted average closing share price immediately before the dates on which the

options were exercised was HK$1.89.

e Upon passing of resolution for the bonus issue by a shareholder resolution on | June 2010 and
pursuant to the 2003 and 2005 stock incentive plans, the exercise price of the share options
granted under these plans and the number of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise
of the subscription right attaching to the outstanding share options were adjusted in accordance

with the terms of the plans and the supplementary guidance attached to the letter from the Stock

Exchange dated 5 September 2005 relating to adjustments to share options.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 3| December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the chief
executive or their associates in the share capital, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™) ) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positons which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO),
or which, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

"Model Code"), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of the Company:

ESHSRITHRAEBRKRG - A
ROREFHEZRAR

K214 128318 EF aRITHRAE
NEEMHEARRARZE B EECE
ERBFLRBERITESRBERADE
XVER) HIIRA - HERG REFPHEARE
BHERBEGRHIEXVHETRELHEHEM
SRR RBRANER AR (BRERE
EHRBRE RO ESR AEE R OA
B)  IREFEFRBAEKRIE 2 KALHE
RARABGEMNECMANESRAR « &
BEETEITAESHTEFR HHTEST
AI([REE=P A EME AR B R AR
mAABIT -

Percentage of the
Company’s

issued capital
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Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of shares BERATE BT
EEpA BEME RO BE BRANE D
Hu Xiang Personal 24,893,500 3.05%
ikl fEA Long Position

RE
Shao Zhiguo Personal 27,740,075 3.40%
ABEE fEA Long Position

RE
Yang Dong Personal 742,500 0.09%
FR fELA Long Position

RE
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Share options of the Company:

Details of the Directors interests in share options of the Company are set out in the

Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had registered any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
SFO), or which as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company as at 3|
December 2014, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executives of the Company
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of the Company:

Percentage of the

Company’s
Number issued capital
Name of Director Nature of Interest of shares HERDFE BT
EEEB EEME RHEE BRAKBE DL
Fangyi Collaboration Beneficial owner 230,607,300 28.27%
Holdings Limited ERBEAAN Long position
FREERBR AR RE
SB Asia Infrastructure Fund LP. Beneficial owner 168,299,994 20.63%
ERBEAAN Long position
&E
SB Asia Pacific Partners L.P. Interest of a 168,299,994 20.63%
controlled corporation Long position
SR UNGIL =9
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS EENEHAPHRER

As at 31 December 2014, Directors’ interests in a major customer were as follows:

ZTE Corporation (“ZTE")

60

Hu Xiang and Qu Degian, Directors of the Company, are members of the 39
shareholders (“Beneficial Owners") of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Ltd. (“Fangyi”),

a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Beneficial Owners had an indirect equity interest of approximately 16.6% in
ZTE, the largest customer of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2014,
through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Weixiantong"). Shenzhen Weixiantong owns 49% shareholding interest
in Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co,, Ltd. (“Zhongxingxin™), which in
turn had approximately 33.87% shareholding interest in ZTE.

Hu Xiang and Qu Degian together held approximately 4.1% shareholding interests
in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Therefore, they have indirect shareholding interests in

ZTE through their shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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As at 3| December 2014, Directors' interests in major suppliers were as follows:

Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co,, Ltd. (“Kang Cheng")

0 Shao Zhiguo, Director of the Company, has directly maintained approximately
10.5% equity interest in Kang Cheng, a supplier accounted for 6.2% purchases of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Kang Cheng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 15%

shareholder of Kang Cheng.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Kang Cheng through their shareholding interests in

Shenzhen Weixiantong.
Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shenglongfeng”)

. Hu Xiang and Shao Zhiguo, Directors of the Company, have directly maintained
approximately 2.0% and 4.7% equity interest in Shenglongfeng, a supplier accounted
for 0.3% purchases of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Shenglongfeng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 20%

shareholder of Shenglongfeng.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Shenglongfeng through their shareholding interests

in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
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Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd. (“Zhongxingxindi")

0 The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Zhongxingxindi, a
supplier accounted for 0.13% purchases of the Group for the year ended 3|
December 2014, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen
Weixiantong was a 34.3% shareholder of Zhongxingxindi. Shenzhen Weixiantong
owned 49% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxin, which in turn had a 70%

shareholding interest in Zhongxingxindi.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Zhongxingxindi through their shareholding

interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Save as disclosed above, no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of

its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2014.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements which did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under Chapter [4A of the Listing

Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the percentage of shares of the Company in
public hands is in compliance with the prescribed level of the minimum public float as set

out in Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

62 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has set up an audit committee with written terms of reference. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors and reports to the

Board of Directors.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company, who are of the opinion that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards and legal requirements,

and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
MOBI Development Co., Ltd.

Hu Xiang
Chairman
25 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
)

TO THE MEMBERS OF MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MOBI Development Co,, Ltd.
(the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 67 to 152, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR 78 e

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group's profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
SeRakEME2ERERR

For the year ended 3| December 2014
HZNI4F 2R3 BIEFRE

2014 2013
20144 2013
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB'000
P EE AR®BTR ARETT
Revenue g A 7 1,648,466 888,226
Cost of sales HEKZR (1,272,626) (694,371)
Gross profit EH 375,840 193,855
Other income and expenses H A KR 8 2,982 7461
Research and development costs e A (79,471) (43,316)
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRIHERX (77,086) (44,890)
Administrative expenses TBFAX (104,705) (89,063)
Finance costs BT 9 (10,063) (286)
Profit before taxation DI E)E 107,497 23,761
Taxation M= 10 (9,921) (4,700)
Profit and the total comprehensive income for the 27 B #EHE A FE(EHY
year attributable to owners of the Company FEMNBRZEBALE [ 97,576 19,061
Earnings per share BRER
— basic (RMB cents) —ER(AEES) 14 11.98 235
— diluted (RMB cents) -BE(ARED) 14 1171 234
ELLERERAA 6 7

2014 8§



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE MR R R

At 3] December 2014
R2014512 A31H

2014 2013
2014 2013
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
it AR®ETR ARETTT
Non-current Assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment W - R R 15 402,259 297,414
Deposits for purchase of plant and equipment BEMFELREEE RS 7,149 7,704
Prepaid lease payments BNEERIE 16 28,379 29,038
Deferred tax assets ERETIEEE |7 15,515 12,251
Intangible assets BV EE 8 27,852 24,060
481,154 370,467

Current Assets RBEE
Inventories TE 19 451,369 386,396
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M YRR 20 1,190,830 872,670
Tax recoverable REAEE e — 314
Prepaid lease payments ARNEEKIE 16 659 659
Pledged bank balances BEMRITER 21 48,988 25,007
Bank balances and cash RITREARIRE 21 212,679 229,754
1,904,525 1,514,800

Current Liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRR 22 999,556 774,832
Dividend payable FEfTAR 2 679 677
Tax payable eI 7,121 1,987
Bank borrowings RITER 23 246,018 67,194
1,253,374 844,690
Net Current Assets REBEETRHE 651,151 670,110
Total Assets less Current Liabilities REERRBEE 1,132,305 1,040,577
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR AR R

At 31 December 2014
R2014%12 8318

2014 2013
2014 F 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P EE AR®BTR ARETT

Non-current Liability FRBER
Deferred income B A 24 7,384 8,346
7,384 8,346
Net Assets EERE 1,124,921 1,032,231

Capital and Reserves RA K
Share capital LN 25 6 6
Reserves G 1124915 1,032,225
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARAERANEENER 1,124,921 1,032,231

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to |52 were approved and authorised FOEINENGEHBRRELETEN

for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: 20154F3 A 25 BELEMBAERZE - TAHNUT
EEREERE
Hu Xiang Shao Zhiguo
7 AR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EX Ed
EBLBRERAE 69
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERERBZBRE

For the year ended 3| December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

Statutory Share
Enterprise surplus option
Share  expansion reserve Special reserve Retained
Share premium fund fund reserve (note 26) earnings
capital [3) TERE LERH %5 BRERE RE Total
EN HE -5 ARE e (HraE2e) &7 @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTT AR®TR ARNTR AR¥TR AR¥T:R
At | January 2013 R20I13F 1A 1R 6 545,334 3034 32218 2999 2593 424,826 1,011,010
Transfer £ = — 3,300 — — (3,300) —
Exercise of stock options TR = 3,268 = - (1,108) = 2,160
Profit and the total comprehensive & FJE R
income for the year 2ERALE = = = = = 19,061 19,061
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12831 A 6 548,602 3034 35518 2999 [,485 440,587 1,032,231
Transfer HE — = 11,023 = = (11,023) =
Recognition of equity-settled BRNEREE RN A
share based payment EREART — — — — 5868 — 5,868
Exercise of stock options TR R = 3,155 = = (985) = 2,170
Profit and the total ERHER
comprehensive income for the year ~ ZFMA LS — — — — = 97,576 97576
Dividend paid (note 13) BARE (Pi313) — (12924) — — — — (12924)
At 31 December 2014 R2014E 128318 6 538,833 3034 46,541 2999 6368 527,140 1124921
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in
the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are required
to maintain two statutory reserves, being an enterprise expansion fund and a statutory
surplus reserve fund which are non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are
made out of net profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by their respective
boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up
their prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of
capitalisation issue. The enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base

of the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision), the share premium of
the Company may be applied for redemption or purchase of any shares of the Company,
payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, payment of its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. During 2014 and 2013, dividends,
to the extent in excess of the Company's retained profits, were funded out of its share

premium.

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid-in capital of EELL KAR T
O&II) AR 27 MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Shenzhen”),
a subsidiary of the Company, and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued
in connection with the acquisition of MOBI Shenzhen. MOBI Shenzhen was acquired
pursuant to the group restructuring completed on |9 December 2002, at which time
the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire

equity interest in MOBI Shenzhen.

GEERBBRE

For the year ended 3| December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERBER

For the year ended 3| December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

2014 2013
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ST
Profit before taxation IR )Ed 107,497 23,761
Adjustments for: PATHEE EHTE
Recognition of equity-settled share i3 uﬂ%%ﬁn%% ARRAR 7
based payment B R 5,868 —
Depreciation and amortisation e Ki#H 45,838 34,669
Write-down on inventories FEMH 3,392 [,026
Government grants related to assets R ERMO RS (962) (766)
Interest income from bank deposit RITEMREBA (3,033) (2,298)
Release of prepaid lease payments RRENEEFIR 659 659
(Loss) gain on disposals of property, HEME  BE K
plant and equipment R (B 5,671 (2,508)
Investment income from structured products EEMEERORERA — (546)
Allowance for doubtful debts AR 1,463 3913
Finance costs BT AR 10,063 286
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital KT &E & @ EBF ML ER SRS 176,456 58,196
Increase in inventories FEEM (68,365) (104,497)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 R E A W ARG M (319,623) (171,688)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K H R BR SIS N 183,805 278,487
Cash generated from operations rEmEHe (27,727 60,498
Taxation paid BERHIE (7,737) (2,134)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETBELREFHE (35,464) 58,364
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HmEBEREWRR

For the year ended 3| December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

2014 2013
20144 2013
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KBRS
Interest and investment income received B ERZERA 3,033 2,844
Government grant related to assets REERBNBRAHEE — 2,400
Development costs paid [RENE:JZIDEN (10,823) (10,237)
Placement of structured products FEEBEEER = (242,300)
Withdrawal on structured products RSB Em = 242,300
Placement of pledged bank balances FEREMRITER (116,687) (38,770)
Withdrawal of pledged bank balances RiH 2 HMRITHALR 92,706 17,960
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  HFERRE (105,389) (80934)
Deposits paid for purchase of plant and equipment HEERE LRE MrRe (7,149) (3,758)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BE RRENERIE 4,689 2,806
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBAMAREFHE (139,620) (107,689)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES V)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM SRR 2,170 2,160
Dividends paid BERRE (12,922) @n
New bank borrowings raised FTIGIRITIE K 246,018 87,194
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRITEN (67,194) (74,360)
Interest paid ERAFHE (10,063) (286)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BALRHELRSFE 158,009 14,687
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RehHReZBYWRD (17,075) (34,638)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT | JANUARY RIAIBRNRERALEEY 229,754 264,392
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER, ~ R 12 A3I BMRE RB&ZEY
represented by bank balances and cash (MRTHEARE ) 212,679 229,754
BELBRERRLE 7 3

2014 8§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

74

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Cayman Island and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange™)
on |7 December 2009. The address of its registered office is Maples Corporate
Services Limited P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KYI-1 104, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business is 7 Langshan First Road Science and

Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company and its principal subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group") are

production and sale of antennas and radio frequency subsystems.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 Investment Entities for the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKFRS 10 define an investment entity and require a reporting entity that meets the
definition of an investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to
measure its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in its consolidated and

separate financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

®  obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing them

with investment management services;

®  commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for

returns from capital appreciation, investment income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its investments on a

fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 2 and HKAS 27 to

introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed based on the criteria set out
in HKFRS 10 as at January |, 2014), the application of the amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

76

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities for the first time in the current year. The amendments
to HKAS 32 clarify the requirements relating to the offset of financial assets and
financial liabilities. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has

a legally enforceable right of set-off" and “simultaneous realisation and settlement'.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The Group has assessed
whether certain of its financial assets and financial liabilities qualify for offset based
on the criteria set out in the amendments and concluded that the application of
the amendments has had no impact on the amounts recognised in the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Contd)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable
amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill or other intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has been no
impairment or reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements applicable to when the
recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is measure at fair value less costs of
disposal. These new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions
and valuation techniques used which are in line with the disclosure required by

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material impact on the disclosures

in the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the requirement to discontinue hedge
accounting when a derivative designated as a hedging instrument is novated under
certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any change to the fair
value of the derivative designated as a hedging instrument arising from the novation

should be included in the assessment and measurement of hedge effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group does not have
any derivatives that are subject to novation, the application of these amendments
has had no impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Group's

consolidated financial statements.

2.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

78

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Contd)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied (HK)IFRIC-Int 2| Levies for the first time in the current
year. (HK)IFRIC-Int 21 addresses the issue as to when to recognise a liability to pay
a levy imposed by a government. The Interpretation defines a levy, and specifies
that the obligating event that gives rise to the liability is the activity that triggers
the payment of the levy, as identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be accounted for, in particular,
it clarifies that neither economic compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial
statements preparation implies that an entity has a present obligation to pay a levy

that will be triggered by operating in a future period.

(HK) IFRIC-Int 2| has been applied retrospectively. The application of this
Interpretation has had no material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts

recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BIEERE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ERHFHITRKLETERBMER

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

BEMBRELRNE %K

HKFRS 14

BRMBHRELERNE 1458

HKFRS 15

BREMBHMELERNE 155

Amendments to HKFRS | |
BEMBRELRNE |5 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

BRGHERIE 165 REBGTLERE 38R (ERTA)
Amendments to HKAS |

BBGERE | RUEFIR)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

BRGAERIE 16K NBEBGTERNE 4 FERTA)
Amendments to HKAS 19

BB GHERIE 195K (BFIA)

Amendments to HKAS 27

BB GERIE 27K (BRI A)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BEREMBRELEIF 105FREBBGTERF 2855 (BFTAK)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

BRMHHEENE 105 - BEMBRERERE 1258 %

BB G ERIFE 2858 (BRI A)
Amendments to HKFRSs
BRMBIwEENZEF]
Amendments to HKFRSs
BBIBHRELE 2 ERT
Amendments to HKFRSs
BRI EL ZERT

SEA(EBMBHEELER )

(%)
E R {E o 7 £ X A9 57 5] R 16 5] &
BRIBHEER

AEBEWERFERTYCEMEM
RAEROFIT BB BT BN RS
) -

Financial Instruments'
PBIA!
Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
EERERA?
Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
REEFA DM
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations®
BBEEXGRENET A
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation®
BEMEREHENIRZ A
Disclosure Initiative’
WELENES
Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
RE¥  EEEYS
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions*
REBAEE —EEHK
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®
BY M BRER A
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture®
REEFAHEBENARAECEZANEENEIEE®
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception®
REER : BRRKEARNOMER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®
BAMBRERR2010FE 20012 FER L FERHE.
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 201 1-2013 Cycle?
BEMBIMEER 2011 FE03FBRFEZE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle®
BARMBIMEEN 2012622014 FBH 2 FEZES
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Cont d)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018, with earlier application

permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after | January 2016,

with earlier application permitted.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017, with earlier application

permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2014, with earlier application

permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2016, with earlier application

permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2014, with limited exception, with

earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impacts on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap 32).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain properties that are measured at fair value at the end of

reporting period as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS |7, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value

in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

S Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

S is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and
J has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group

gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries

to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is reduced for estimated customers retums, rebates, and other similar

allowance.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and

titles have been passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

J the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the goods;

J the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree

usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

J it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will

flow to the Group; and

J the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of antenna system, base station RF subsystem and coverage

extension solution is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will low to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life

of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment other than properties under construction less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on

a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property

assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time

frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, pledged bank balances and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for

short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of loan and receivables

Loan and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Loan and receivables are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of

the loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

S breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest and principal

payments; or

S it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of loan and receivables (Cont d)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade receivables and notes
receivable that are assessed for improvement on a collective basis even if they were
assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 30-240 days (2013: 30-240 days), observable changes in

national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of returmn for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowanced account. Changes in the carrying amount of the

allowance amount are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of loan and receivables (Cont d)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, dividend payable and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is

recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share option scheme

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the

vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BIEERE

FTEENBEA)

BUHRER
AEBERBERSREN S ORI
EREERCREETEBEALD
NEEMERARLORT S B
B TEBURRRTBEE - WAK
EYEERTERBBAD AR
R RkEw® - WHEERHEEEE
AIASBEERFELERERRE
EVRAEEAE RAKERES
RERMEERAD A ERR K
W AIXEBAEERACREE
MARERE WA FIEY ENEE
MER -

REARRBESREEN  BED
B B R B RE R A
2 EM 35 R A RERR I MAE 26 R EHAY
BHEBHBANMEE  BREARS
e o

ALEEENEEETERR - BUB
FEmEBEERERMAE - BUHHE
RNEREERTERERMHE
MERMZE @ FARR

o

ARG NHNR S
HEgZREUROZNHXE
B
FERBHRFESEBREREL
BHNATEETE  ERBHNER
EFIMER S Bt s (BB RE)
TE R EERIED o

BUHERERAT
2014 8§ 89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 31 December 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Share-based payment transactions (Cont d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Contd)

Share option scheme (Cont d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to share option reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to

retained profits.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication

that they may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets (Cont d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when they relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if all the

following have been demonstrated:

J the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be

available for use or sale;

J the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

S the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

S how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

S the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible assets; and

J the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible

asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for intemally-generated intangible asset is the sum
of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is measured

at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (ie. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to

non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes which are classified as
defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 31 December 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of

the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2014, no deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax
losses of approximately RMB 15,260,000 (2013:RMB36,500,000). The realisability
of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future assessable profits generated are more or less than expected, a recognition
or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or

loss for the period in which such a recognition or reversal takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (Contd)

Write down of inventories

The Group writes down inventories obsolescence based on an assessment of the
net realisable value of inventories. Allowances are applied to inventories where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower
than the cost of inventories. The identification of obsolete inventories requires the
use of judgment and estimates on the conditions and usefulness of the inventories.
The amount of written-down would be changed as a result of the changes in
telecommunication market conditions and technology development of the industry

subsequently.

The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December 2014 is RMB451,369,000 (net
of write down of RMB6,710,000 (2013: RMB386,396,000 (net of write down of
RMB3,930,000)).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount which is higher of the value in use and fair value less costs
to sell of the intangible assets. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the intangible assets and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected or there is downward revision of estimated
future cash flow due to unfavorable changes in facts and circumstances, a material

impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of intangible assets at 3| December 2014 is RMB27,852,000
(2013: RMB24,060,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (Contd)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The board of directors of the Company has set up a valuation
committee, which is headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level | inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
valuation committee works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial
Officer reports the valuation committee’s findings to the board of directors of the
Company every quarter to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the

assets and liabilities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising

issued capital, share premium and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendation of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,

new share issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new bank loans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Details of the significant accounting policies adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets and financial
liabilities are disclosed in note 3. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed

below:

Categories of financial instruments
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The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
pledged bank balances, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, dividend
payable and bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash and pledged bank balances, which represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets at the end of the reporting
period. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables
and bills receivable. The credit risk on trade receivables and notes receivable
are concentrated on top five customers of the Group. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable and notes and bills
receivable at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the

Company consider the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited because the majority of the

counterparties are international banks and state-owned banks with good reputation.

During the year, the Group purchased from banks certain short-term structured
products whereby the return is determined based on the return of portfolios
of debt or equity instruments as invested by that banks. The management of
the Group considered that the risk is limited as the banks are reputable financial
institutions in the PRC. No structured products were held by the Group at 31
December 2014 and 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont d)

The Group sells most of the products to a limited number of customers in the
PRC. If the Group is unable to broaden the customer base and expand relationships
with major wireless network solution providers and major network operators, the
business may continue to be impacted by unanticipated demand fluctuations which
can have a negative impact on the revenues and business, and an adverse effect on

the results of operations and financial condition.

The Group has a significant concentration of customers. For the year ended 3|
December 2014, aggregate sales to the top five customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 87.4% (2013: 91.0%) of the total sales. Amounts due from them
as at 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately RMB420,389,000 (2013:
RMB507,975,000), representing 74.0% (2013: 83.5%) of trade receivables (before
making allowance for doubtful debt) as at 31 December 2014. These major
customers are network operators and domestic and overseas wireless network

solution providers with good reputation and repayment records.

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables,
bank balances, trade payables and bank borrowings of the Group are denominated
in United States dollar (“USD"), Euro (“EUR") and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD"),
currencies other than the functional currency of the Company's principal
subsidiaries, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure when the need arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

102

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 6.
(Cont'd)

Currency risk (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets

and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2014
20148
Assets
gE
RMB’ 000

B¥EEREERERBE
(&)
&ewmB(E)

REFBRREEIMNEHENEER
BERERAGENRAENT

2013

2013F
Liabilities Assets Liabilities
2 BE af

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®BTRE AR%BTR ARBTIT AR®TR

UsD ET 90,748 896 120,700 13016
EUR BT 487 — 7516 —
HKD BT |,644 234 1,602 563

The following table details the sensitivity to 5% (2013: 5%) change in the RMB
against USD, EUR and HKD. The 5% (2013:5%) represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analyses of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period have been determined based on the adjustment of translation
of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period for 5% (201 3:
5%) change in foreign currency rates. A negative number indicates an increase in
post-tax loss and a decrease in post-tax profit where RMB strengthens against USD,
EUR and HKD. For 5% (2013: 5%) weakening of RMB against USD, EUR and HKD,

there would be an equal and opposite impact on post-tax loss or post-tax profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

BREREEREREE

(Cont'd) (%)
Currency risk (Contd) EXmE(E)
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBETT
Decrease in post-tax profit Tt 18 M ER A S A 12 B 18
or increase in post-tax loss (i) 20 (i)
If RMB strengthens against USD MAREEETHE (3.818) (4,559)
If RMB strengthens against EUR WARELBITHE (20) (319)
If RMB strengthens against HKD AR KB THAE (69) (55)

() This is mainly attributable to the outstanding foreign currency receivables,
bank balances and bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting period

arose from the foreign currency sales in the Group.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure

during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk which arises from pledged
bank balances (note 21) and fixed rate bank borrowings (note 23) in 2014 and
2013. Interest bearing pledged bank balances and fixed rate bank borrowings are
mainly short-term nature. Therefore, any variations in interest rate will not have a

significant impact on the results of the Group.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk which arises from bank
balances which carry interest at prevailing market rates (note 21) and floating
rate bank borrowings (note 23) in 2014 and 2013. Other than those arising from
discounted notes receivable, the Group keeps its borrowings at floating rate of

interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

() HZeBRIZREFAEERINEH
EMN2RARREEEHINE
FEUERTR - RITAEARBITIER ©

FRERA ARERNERRLTR
BENHER - Sk EBE LT
RIREE A BN ER -

FlEER
AEER2014F R 2013FEE S HIT
BITHEBR (MR 21) RE BER1TE Z (P
H)EENAFEFRER - EE
BEBTEBREBBTEEEEA
MBS - At ERFEEHER
SHASENEREREATE -

AEBER 2014 %2013FEERETH
SRR BRI RITAER(MTEE21) RF
BRRTERHFRELENRERE
FERER BRENBREREREEN
RN AEBELVZEREEE - N
BERSATENERRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)
Interest rate risk (Cont d)
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The following illustrates the potential effect on post-tax profit for the year:

REREERREREE

(%)

FMEER(E)
AEEBMITENEHBER - R
- EREQERMNXER THESR
FERZELEMEAMEER o

HERHRABNEEZENT

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET ARBTT
(Note a) (Note a)
(BtaEa) (PiteEa)
If the interest rate goes up fisi I = £ F
Increase in post-tax profit or decrease in post-tax loss  Ft1& I E 3% fngk & 1% B8R 2 541 531
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
(Note b) (Note b)
(Bi&ED) (P#EDb)
If the interest rate goes down fiei Fll 2= T b2
Decrease in post-tax profit or increase in post-tax loss & Fl) & 4> 2k i 1% B 1818 AN (536) (516)

Notes:

©) If interest rate on bank balances had been 30 basis points higher and interest rate on short-
term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher and all other variables

were held constant.

(b) If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HKD and other foreign currencies had
been 0.1 basis point and 30 basis points lower, respectively, and interest rate on short-term
floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all other variables were

held constant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance

with loan covenants.

Banking facilities available to the Group are approximately RMB600,000,000 (201 3:
RMB388,291,000).

The Group relies on bank balances and cash, and bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. Undrawn borrowing facilities of the Group are approximately

RMB 187,212,000 (2013: RMB103,227,000) as at 3| December 2014.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 6. HBERESEEERBEE
(Cont'd) (%)
Liquidity risk (Contd) REBESER(E)
Liquidity risk table REELSERE
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2014
interest rate Payable 0t030 310 60 6110 90 910 180 180 to 365 cash flows R014E
IETH on demand days days days days days BFFR 128318
BRfE  BEREE 0E30% 360X 61290% IZINK  I80E365K RER Kk
% RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000
% ARBTn  ARETR  ARMTn  AR®Tn  ARMTr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn
2014 WI4E
Trade and other payebles ~ BAREMERER NATER 3705% 133042 131,555 104049 11342 14093 966,758 966,758
Dividend payable ERRE NATER 679 - - - - - 679 619
Bank borrowings RITEHR
-Fixed interest rate -EEHE 6.23% - 138018 - 50825 60014 - 248857 6018
37123 371,060 131,555 154874 173,440 14093 1,216,294 1213455
Carying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2013
interest rate Payable 01030 31060 611090 9110 180 18010 365 cash flows R0I3E
e on demand days days days days days BRNR 128318
ERNE  EEMEE IEXN 30K 81290% IFINR  I0F3SK Rei Kk
% RMB 000 RMBO0D RMB OO RMB OO0 RMBO0D RMB OO RMBO0) RMBO0O
% ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETT  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR
2013 yl[kE3
Trade and other payebles ~ BAREMEMNER NIATER 131,116 210483 151,144 115,659 85,646 19517 713565 713565
Dividend payable ERRE NATER 671 - - - - - 677 677
Bank borrowings R
- Variabe interest rate U 13 - 12217 - - - - 12217 1219
~Fixed interest rate -EEH% 630 - - - 20300 15315 20660 5675 55000
131,793 20700 151,144 135959 10096 40177 78734 78143
1 06 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined in accordance

with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels | to 3 based on

the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)

in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

7.

108

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive officer of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM have been

aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

The Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Antenna system - manufacture and sale of antenna system and related products

Base station RF subsystem - manufacture and sale of base station RF subsystem and

related products

Coverage extension solution - manufacture and sale of a wide array of coverage

products.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2014

BAR T BER

Ao ERERMFESBRAEMBDAR
AfTHABE  IZE2ERRAZR
MERETERARXNRIEENEMK
FRIEER - EREAEBNIREDF
B - EREERRAILEA B A

REBRBETEHBEHRELERIE 85 H
ERBEEDEWOT

I

ARER - BEREERRE R LA
BEm

HEIGTIAT R — BB R HE RS
BT R RARREm

BELRITR-HERHERERS
Em



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. WARSHER(E)
Information of segment revenues and segment results EBRIBUAR D BEENER
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

Segment revenues 2 EUA
Antenna system N L 670,792 329,226
Base station RF subsystem B ST 24 835,928 497,192
Coverage extension solution BERMAER 141,746 61,808
1,648,466 888,226
Segment results SEEE
Antenna system PN L 147,360 71464
Base station RF subsystem EU ST 24 105,652 69,819
Coverage extension solution BERMAER 41,176 9,256
Reconciliation of segment results to profit 7 BB R AR A Al A
before taxation: Eaf 294,188 150,539
Other income and expenses H A KA 2,982 7461
Unallocated expenses ROBERXZ (179,610) (133953)
Finance costs B PKAR (10,063) (286)
Profit before taxation 7 70 ) 107,497 23,761
ELLERERAA 109
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

7.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d)

WA D EBER (&)

BRI BURARDBRENER(F)

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Other segment information HitpHER
Depreciation: nE:
Antenna system RRZRHE 10,574 4,056
Base station RF subsystem EU ST AT 24t 13,177 13263
Coverage extension solution BELHAR 2,234 771
Segment total (note) o BT (f3E) 25,985 18,090
Unallocated amount PVl 12,822 10,739
Group total SBAG 38,807 28,829
Research and development costs: BRI -
Antenna system PN 37,078 17,806
Base station RF subsystem EU SR T 24 38,738 16,175
Coverage extension solution BELMAE 3,655 9,335
Group total (note) SEE () 79,471 43316
Amortisation B -
Antenna system PN L 3,130 2,326
Base station RF subsystem EU ST 24 3,901 3514
Group total (note) SBE () 7,031 5,840

Note: Amounts included in the measure of segment results.

.1 1 O MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d)

Revenues reported above represent revenues generated from external customers.

There are no inter-segment sales during the two years ended 3| December 2014.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 3. The Group does not allocate other income,
distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense to individual reportable segments when making decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assessing their performance. This
is the measure reported to CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

No segment information on assets and liabilities is presented as such information
is not reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

7.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Entity-wide disclosures:

Information about products

Revenues from each group of similar products within the operating segments are as

follows:

WA D EBER (&)

ERREREESN:
FHERNESR

AR ) BRI B AR UL mn A8 Bl O A

e

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBFT
Antenna system KEEHE
TD-LTE/SCDMA antennas TD-LTE/SCDMA X4 382,548 156,840
W-CDMA antennas W-CDMA X 45 130,594 80,363
Microwave antennas BTN 38,422 15,290
Multi-band/Multi-system antennas L VET S PN 31,044 25,037
FDD-LTE antennas FDD-LTE R4 28,922 2466
CDMA/GSM antennas CDMA/GSM K £ 18,802 24,898
Other antennas Hib KR 40,460 24332
670,792 329226
Base station RF subsystem HIETIRF R
LTE RF devices LTE 5T $R e 314,292 71,665
GSM RF devices GSM g 38814 215,941 124613
W-CDMA RF devices W-CDMA 5T $B 881+ 131,821 101,450
TD-SCDMA RF devices TD-SCDMA 51 #8284 115,426 123,620
CDMA RF devices CDMA Jf B2 7,072 10,264
CDMA 2000 RF devices CDMA 2000 51 SE &8 1+ 2,860 9,075
Other devices HAhgs it 48516 56,505
835,928 497,192
1 .1 2 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Entity-wide disclosures (Cont @)

Information about products (Cont d)

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

WARDEER (&)
ER2EAREER (&)
EHRERNER(Z)
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBETT

Coverage extension solution BEEMLE
Aesthetic antennas EL N 128,382 42,860
In-door antennas EAKRE 1,697 415
Other products Hofth 2 om 11,667 18,533
141,746 61,808
1,648,466 888,226
Information about major customers FHIEEFMNER

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the

total sales of the Group are as follows:

REREAFEHASEAHEREER
BB 10% M EFHBANT

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBETT

Customer A BEA
Customer B! ZEB!
Customer C' zEC

891,822 456,165
181,427 84,785
175,270 112,742

revenue from antenna system and base station RF subsystem.

TBRARBRGREUG AT AR5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. WARSHERE)
Geographical information HEER
Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is presented ERANEERBINTEEWARER
based on the location where the goods are delivered to: TR BEXNEMNMNE 25 :
2014 2013
20145 2013F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

PRC i 1,468,709 784382

Overseas LI
Thailand B 71,463 67,600
Japan =N 30,982 3812
Finland SH 25,002 17,261
Mexico =Pt 13,437 4,208
Hungary 0 7 A 13,350 5,790
India ENE 2,742 201
Others HAtb 22,781 4972

Subtotal g 179,757 103,844

1,648,466 888,226
All non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets) of the Group are located in REBFMEFRDEE(EEHEBEEE
the PRC. BRIM IR -
1 .1 4 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BILERE

Htb WA KB

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Goverment grants B &
— related to expense items (note a) —HRAX AR B (M a) 3,882 1,049
— related to assets (note 24) —EEERB(ME24) 962 766
Compensation income ERA 338 85
Interest income from bank deposit RITIF A B WA 3,033 2,298
Interest income from structured products (note b)  &EIEEE R E WA (7 D) — 546
(Loss) gain on disposals of property, HEWE  BER

plant and equipment R (EE) W (5,671) 2,508
Others Hity 438 209

2,982 7,461

otes GEE

©)] The amount mainly represents government grants received from the PRC tax bureau to

encourage the Group's continuous development, and the amounts are based on value-

added tax previously paid and recognised in the profit or loss. No specific conditions have

been required to be met.

(b)  The amount represents investment income from short-term structured products with

banks, which carry variable returns based on the return of portfolios of debt or equity

investments as invested by banks.

@ ZRRIBERBECMNEERAE
RARBERBANBEHD S BA
MRFEGMS  DHPERBERAR
TEASZBAEEFEER -

b) ZFRRERBOMNEHEBUEERMR
BREWA - RBTAEERRRA
REHANEHAEFDER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BIIEAE
2014 2013
20145 20135
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARBTFT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEHRFE
— wholly repayable within five years —2HERAFNER 10,063 286
10. TAXATION 10. HE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBFLE  AE®TL
Current year: AEE :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") BT
(TRERRMEH]) 13,185 4,121
Deferred tax (note 17) BRI (BFE17) (3,264) 579
9,921 4,700
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is exempted from RABRHASEEEMAY - REBA
income tax. It is not subject to tax in other jurisdictions. BN - ARRHBAMIHAMA
HRERMTIA -
Hong Kong A
The applicable tax rate of MOBI HK is 16.5%. In 2014 no provision for Hong Kong L BEAMERTER 165% 12014
Profits Tax was made in the consolidated financial statements since the assessable FBARELEBERTEN 2K
profit of Mobi HK was wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward. In 2013, no ARORBEREE  WRAERES
provision of Hong Kong Profit Tax was made in consolidated financial statements as BB ERPFIRESNESHEE - 1
MOBI HK have no assessable profit. 2013F - HRELEB YN EERD &
M- MEAERAMBRRTARES
SR -
1 .1 6 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TAXATION (Contd)

PRC

In 2008, MOBI Shenzhen was a High and New Technology Enterprise defined
by Shenzhen Finance Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen
Municipality and Shenzhen Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation
(the “Authority”) and therefore was entitled to 15% preferential tax rate from PRC
enterprise income tax for three years starting from 2008, according to the New
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law. On 31 October 2011 and 30 September 2014,
the Authority has further extended the preferential tax rate for further three years.
Accordingly, the tax rate for MOBI Shenzhen is 15% for the two years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

In October 2013, MOBI Xian was a High and New Technology Enterprise defined
by Province Finance Bureau and Administrator of Local Taxation of Municipality and
Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation in Shann Xi, and therefore
was entitled to 15% preferential tax rate from PRC enterprise income tax for three
years starting from the year ended 31 December 2013, according to the New PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law. Accordingly, the tax rate of MOBI Xian is 15% for the
two years ended 3| December 2014 and 201 3.

In December 2013, MOBI Jian was a High and New Technology Enterprise defined
by Province Finance Bureau and Administrator of Local Taxation of Municipality and
Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation in Jiang Xi, and therefore
was entitled to 15% preferential tax rate from PRC enterprise income tax for three
years starting from the year ended 31 December 2013, according to the New PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law. Accordingly, the tax rate of MOBI Jian is 15% for the
two years ended 3| December 2014 and 201 3.

The applicable tax rate of other PRC subsidiaries are 25% (2013: 25%) for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BIEFRE

10. BiE#)

FE

FA2008 5 - EELL RINE R BB -
I T B B RORYI T B K HH A
BIERRERBIRMEE
bt AT AR B 3 B 1b 3£ P45 8% B 2008
FR=ZFNLISANEEREHAPE
CEMBHR R2011FI0A3IHR
2014F9H30R - EREE—FHKE
ERMEBER=F - At - BRI
MR RREE2014%F R20I13F12A
3 BIEMESEER 15% °

R2013FI0A BEALXERAS
RE  BRAdAHERRRASR
BRBEBRE A=A RMEE -
WRIRBHHECERMEHEEEE
013F A3 BLEFEER=F15%
HEBHRHMFBEEEMEH
bt B PR EE2014F K 20135
12A3 BIEMEFENBER 15%

R2013FNA BEELXEIAE
MHE IAEt I RNERRIASE
BRBEBRE A=A RMEE -
WRIRBHHECERMEHEEEE
013F A3 BLEFEER=F15%
HEBHRHMFBEEEMEH
bt B EZREE2014F K 20135
12A3 BIEMEFENBER 15%

BHEWA4ENAINRBILEEE Hif
F BB A BIAY B A R R A 25% (2013
F 1 5%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

10. TAXATION (Contd) 0. BIE#E)
PRC (Contd) HE(E)
Tax charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation as follows: FEMBXHERANBEENT
2014 2013
2014 20135
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBETT

Profit before taxation B IRlNE 107,497 23,76
Tax at PRC EIT at 15% RPBREMERTEE
5% 5t EH)BIE @) 16,125 3,564
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PR IR R 2 5 32 A
for tax purpose M2 2,269 2,290
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBRAL
for tax purpose 2 (945) (115)
Tax benefit SN &= (b) (4,400) (1,890)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBBEENN BT E — 1,625
Utilisations of tax losses previously B A LA AR TR A
not recognised HIAEE (3,186) (171
Effect of different tax rates of group entities ~ EEBEMNTRHENTE 58 (603)
9,921 4,700
Notes: BaE
(@)  Applicable income tax rate of 15% represents the relevant income tax rate of MOBI () 15% EERMSHH R EEEREBA
Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian, the major subsidiaries of the Company which BARRABGMNAORRAEEFAA
generates majority of the Group's assessable profit. BELLRYI - LB R REL AR HAE

RBRHE

(b)  Tax benefit represents an incentive scheme that, in addition to the research and (b) BB ERERBEE - MRAELK
development cost incurred which is deductible for tax purpose, a further 50% of the EREBIEIN - B5M50% 8 B E E
research and development cost incurred is deductible. BRI AR ©

1 .1 8 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BIEFRE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after (crediting) charging the following items:

FENH

FEMNBEGEA)HBIATER :

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Directors' remuneration (note 12) B0 (P 12) 3,283 1,610
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRENET IR 21,285 11,881
Other staff costs (note) Hith & TR (P EE) 261,694 159,359
286,262 172,850
Auditors' remuneration ZEENENE 2,144 1,821
Operating lease rentals in respect of BN TSENKEHEERS
— prepaid lease payments —BRHEENIE 659 659
— rented premises —BlEmE 7,404 10,044
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB NREBITE 38,807 28,829
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 7,031 5,840
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERERZMNFEENA 1,269,846 693,345
Werite-down on inventories (included in cost of sales) 77 &#UR (FT ASHERA) 3,392 1,026
Loss (gain) on disposals of property, HEME - BERREN
plant and equipment Eoia (ezs) 5,671 (2,508)
Allowance for doubtful debts RIREE 1,463 3913

Note:

No rental expenses for the staff quarter in other staff cost for the year ended 31 December 2014

(2013: RMB2,776,000).

B -

HE2014F 12831 BLLFE  REMBETAK
ARTEETEEMAEHAT(2013F : AR

#2776,0007T) °

BUHERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

[2. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the executive directors

and non-executive directors and chief executive officer of the Company by the

Group are as follows:

2. EEREEME
EEZHe

g

2014
20145
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic
Retirement  salaries, bonus

benefits  and allowances)

scheme Hiri &
contributions (FEEHEF

AKBENRENRDRNMITES
BEIRTEEFNSRITBAENHE

Fees RKER K - Total
ue SRR RERER) st
RMB’000 RMB'’000 RMB’000 RMB'’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR%®TR ARET:R
Executive directors HITES
Hu Xiang (note a) A (Pt a) 79 — 1,372 1,451
Shao Zhiguo (note d) AR &R (Pt d) 63 14 1,217 1,294
Liao Dong (note d) BER (M d) — — — —
Non-executive directors FHTES
Qu Degjian JEfER 79 — — 79
Yang Dong FR 79 = = 79
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIYFHITES
Li Tianshu FRE 142 — — 142
Zhang Han 3R 127 = = 127
Li Guinian FTRF 11 — — 0l
680 14 2,589 3,283
1 20 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

Directors’ emoluments (Contd)

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BILERE

2. EEREEME(ZE)

EEM=(E)

2013
20134

Retirement

Other
emoluments
(mainly basic

salanies, bonus

benefits  and allowances)
scheme HitMe
contributions (F26#
Fees RET E# Total
e ATEEE  RERRR) o5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Hu Xiang (note a) A (P a) 80 — 395 475
Shao Zhiguo AR 64 37 38| 482
Non-executive directors FHITES
Qu Degjian JEfER 80 — — 80
Yang Dong FR 80 — — 80
Yan Andrew Y. (note b) Rk (fizEDb) 47 — — 47
Lai Yongxiang (note b) #EK (A (FEEb) 48 — — 48
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIFHTES
Li Tianshu FRE 145 — — 145
Zhang Han R 129 — — 129
Li Guinian (note c) FRF (P 34 — — 34
Bao Fan (note c) B C) 20 — — 90
797 37 776 1,610
Note a: Mr. Hu Xiang is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his emoluments fidta: MALEEMARDRITHAR - U
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive officer. EAEEMe O EEERTRESR
RERBEHMS o
Note b:  On 2 August 2013, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Yan Andrew Y. MizEb: 20134 8A28 EZgH A
and Mr. Lai Yongxiang from non-executive directors. TERBKAEEFEFERNTE
Fo
Note c:  On 10 September 2013, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Bao Fan Mizkc: 201359R 108 - EFEHEBN
from independent non-executive director and approved Mr. Li Guinian as replacement FABEBIENTES Wit
with immediate effect. ERERENREEBVIFNTE
e &
Note d: On 25 March 2015, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Shao Zhiguo Mizkd: 201543 A 258 - EEEHRERNE

from executive director and approved Mr. Liao Dong as replacement with effect from 26

March 2015.

BELABHTRATES  THAEBER
TEBRBEHTES B B20I5F
3P 26 BRBER -

BUHERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014

HZ2014F 12831 ALLEE
12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 12. EEREEMEE)
Directors’ emoluments (Cont @) BExMe(E)

122

During the two years ended 31 December 2014, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the

directors or the five highest paid individuals has waived any emoluments during the

two years ended 31 December 2014.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals included two (2013: two) directors for the year
ended 31 December 2014, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The

emoluments of the remaining three (2013: three) highest paid individuals are as

HEWA4FNAJIBLEREE &
SEYEMEZXREESTMAL
XM ERBFEMBI R MEAR
SERNRE  SERBBFEE - &
ZE0M4ENAIBLEREEE - #
BEEMEFH LTS MALTRE
WEE B £ o

)

B8

HZ20M4FNANALFE AA
EaFMATEEMEQ3F: M
REF  RENMEFBEIRLX

follows: HH=ZQ013F: Z2)BaH A
TR EEFIT ¢
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB' 000
ARET T AREFIT
— salaries and other benefits © M EAMBEH 3,052 947
— contributions to retirement benefits scheme ﬁi BFFTEI R 37 94
3,089 [,041

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2014 2013

20145 20135

No. of employees  No. of employees

BEAH EE A

— HKD nil to HKD 1,000,000 —ZHITE 1,000,000 BT — 3
- HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 — 1,000,001 & 7T E 1,500,000 /& 7T 3 —

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BILERE

DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:  F ATERIED IREIALE. :

2013 final dividend of HKD0.02 per share 013 FREKREEBRE AR
(2013: 2012 final dividend of nil) per share 0027 (20134 : 2012
KABREE) 12,924 —

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of HKD0.04 per RREHRE EFEZRMNESR
share respect of the year ended 3| December 2014 amounting to approximately 2014F 12 A3 BEFENARBRES
HKD32,633,000 (equivalent to RMB25,744,000) has been proposed by the f20.047% 70 0 A £ 4932,633,0007% 7T
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual (FAE M AR 25,7440007T) © ZBEFK
general meeting. RREERRBEAS F#tAE7 A{E

g o
The final dividend of HKD0.02 per share in respect of the year ended 3| HEWI3ZENAIBLEFERNKRS
December 2013 was approved by the shareholders in the 2013 annual general IR 2 ER002 TMN20145F5 A 21 B
meeting on 2| May 2014, MBFREBFAE FEREH

JE ©

ELLERERAA 123
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

14.  EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BRER
The earning figures for calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AU EARREBREEARKES
attributable to the ordinary owners of the Company are based on the following MR K B BRI 8 BRI FE HiRE
data: THIBURAE -
2014 2013
2014 20135
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Earnings 27
Profit for the year and attributable ARAVER NEEFERRM
to owners of the Company and eamings for purpose & FA1ERT B B IR E A K #5E & F|
of basic and diluted earings per share B & 97,576 19,061
2014 2013
20145 20134
’000 '000
R TR
Number of shares R EH
Weighted average number of ordinary shares REsTEBRERAT
for the purpose of basic eamings per share B E AR T 8 814,545 810,409
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares TRRETHEYE
— 2003 share options —2003 FHE R = 20
— 2005 share options —2005 S5 e i 2,859 2,570
—2013 share options —2013 iR E 15,878 103
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RE BB REER T
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share LR INE T 833,282 813,102
1 24 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BIEFRE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

I5. ¥  BERRE

Furniture
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment  improvements Motor Plant and Construction

Buildings EER HE vehicles machinery in progress Total
BF RERRE VEST ] "E BERHE EEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS AREFT ARETR ARBTR ARBT ARBTR ARBTR

COST B
At | January 2013 R0B3EIAIB 92209 13,866 10,567 4365 181,400 45792 348,199
Additions RE 11639 1,308 — 906 17,834 63322 95,009
Transfer LT 37,884 407 — — 5870 (44161) —
Disposals HE — (143) — (572) (3150) — (3.865)
At31 December 2013 R 2013F 12 A31 B 141,732 15438 10567 4699 201,954 64953 439343
Addtions RE 2733 4380 290 1440 36,600 108,569 154012
Transfer Bz 138,759 — — — 8242 (147,001) —
Disposals HE — (603) (7,046) (473) (24631) — (32753)
At3] December2014 #2014 12 A31 A 283,204 19215 3811 5,666 222,165 26521 560,602

DEPRECIATION ik
At | January 2013 R2013F1A18 1,899 8803 5103 3053 87,809 — 116,667
Provided for the year R 3215 1412 1,480 375 20347 — 28829
Eliminated on disposals (£ &34 — (108) — (544) 915) — (3567)
At31 December 2013 72013 12 A31 B 15,114 10,107 6583 2,884 107,241 — 141,929
Provided for the year ~ F R 6294 1,665 1,304 560 28984 — 38807
Eliminated on disposals T\ & 8 = (541) (6,564) (209) (15079) — (22,393)
At31 December2014 720145 12 A31 B 21,408 11231 1323 3235 121,146 — 158,343

CARRYING VALUES  BREIfE
At31 December2014 720145 12 A31 B %1816 7984 2488 2431 101,019 26521 402059
At 3] December 2013 R2013F 12831 R 126618 5331 3984 1815 94713 64953 297414
BLEREBRAR 125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

15.

126

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using straight-line

method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease or 30
years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% - 31.7%

Leasehold improvements 3% - 33.3%

Motor vehicles 9.5% - 19%

Plant and machinery 9% - 33.3%

The Group's buildings are situated in the PRC under medium-term land use rights.

The Group was in process of obtaining the relevant property ownership certificate
for a building with carrying amount of approximately RMB180,753,000 (2013:
RMB45,463,000) in property, plant and equipment as at 3|1 December 2014. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property ownership

certificate can be obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2014

I5. % BERKEE)

ME - BERRBHEZIRZERING
EDRE T AFHRANERERL
R RIRBEERIRAT FEZME
XRGTIR -

BF HEF sk
30 (AR
HERE)
HKE  REREE 19% % 31.7%
HEMEEE 3% = 33.3%
"E 9.5% = 19%

TS Ko iz 9% & 33.3%

AEBURPENBFTRDHLIHNE
PR -

AEBIENE-BEEFNEBRE
EMERE EVE BERXHE
R2014FNAIBMEEENAA
B #180753,0007C(20134F : AR ¥
45463,0007C) e A QR EERA - A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BILERE

l6. ANHEERE

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Land use rights in the PRC FAFR B ) & 3t {F A
Medium-term lease HEES 29,038 29,697
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EX3 0 i
Current portion BNERER 2 659 659
Non-current portion FERNEIED & 28,379 29,038
29,038 29,697

The Group was in the process of obtaining the relevant land use right certificate
for the leasehold land with carrying amount of approximately RMB9,705,000
(2013: RMB9,911,000) as at 31 December 2014. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the relevant land use right certificate can be obtained in due time

without significant costs.

AEBFENEZHETHOBERL
HofF FARERE - ZIBLHIM 20145 12 A
3 B EREEL R AR 9,705,000 T
(2013 : AR¥9911,0007T) ° A2
AEERA A RERGEELHE
FAtEE  MAELEEARKAR -
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HREMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 17. EEBIREE
Excess of
accounting
depreciation
over tax Unrealised Share-base
depreciation profit of inter- payment
Allowance BiTTE  Allowance for  company sales BARR AR
for inventories BB doubtful debts AREHEMN Tax losses RER Others Total
FERE FENEE RERE RERER HEBR H AR At At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETR

At | January 2013 R0I3FI AR 202 3725 1 671 7482 459 — 12,830
Credit (charge) to
profit or loss EEERAR (M) 154 47 587 1063 (3429) 574 — (579)

At 31 December

2013 R013E1A3I1B 356 4197 878 1,734 4053 1033 = 12,251
Credit (charge) to
profit or loss ERERAR (NR) 409 1539 219 3274 (4053) 99 880 3264

At 31 December
2014 R2014F 128318 765 5736 1,097 5008 = 2029 880 15515

1 28 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Cont )

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
approximately RMB 15,260,000 (2013: RMB36,500,000) available for offset against
future profits. Included in unrecognised tax losses are approximately RMBI, 168,000
(2013: RMB1,690,000) that may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining
unrecognised tax losses are approximately RMB14,092,000 (2013: RMB34,810,000)

that will be expired as followings:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BIEFRE

17. EEHBEEE)

RERHR  AEERBRAHBER
) A R ¥152600007C(2013F : A
S # 36,500,000 7T ) A] A FA 4K 85 K 2R 4
Fl o RERTHE B 05 &R
e AR 1,1680007C(20134F :
AR 1,690,0007T) © 88 T ARBERTS
BERAO AR 14,092,000 72013 F :
AR¥34810,0007C) #§ A T F EE)
HR -

2014 2013
20145 20135
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT

Unrecognised tax losses with expiry in: KU TEERIEM R ERTEEE -
-2014 —20144F — 4248
- 2015 —20154F — 3,779
-2016 —2016%F 3,889 7437
-2017 —2017F 10,203 10,203
-2018 —20184F — 9,143
14,092 34810

Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB454, 116,000 (2013: RMB354,799,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

BEBERE )% - BH2008F 1 A1 H
e B BF QAR S E R
REBHMENN - KEFMBHREA
AR HEF AR EMG R ENE R
Z8B AR ¥4541160007T(20134F :
AR 354,799,000 7T ) sHRIEER IE
B A 7 % (B m] 22 6 B¢ [l O IR 2 R ) I
B - BE R Z ARV AT R R B
@ °
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mEPBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 AILER

18.

130

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BLEE

Development costs

BERA
RMB’000
AR®T
COST A
At | January 2013 K203 1A 1A 25813
Additions NE 10,237
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12831 8 36,050
Additions NE 10,823
At 31 December 2014 M2014%F 12 A31 B 46,873
AMORTISATION #hey
At | January 2013 R2013F 1 A 1B 6,150
Charge for the year FAME 5,840
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 A31 B 11,990
Charge for the year FANM 7,031
At 3| December 2014 M2014% 12 A31 B 19,02
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2014 M2014%F 12 A31 B 27,852
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 A31 B 24,060

Development costs on antenna system (LTE antennas and Multi-system Antennas)
and base station RF subsystem (LTE filters and new models dedicated for some
customers) are internally generated and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the 3 years when they are ready for use. Included in the development costs
of approximately RMBI8.Imillion (2013: RMB9.9 million) were relating to
development of systems not ready for the intended use and, accordingly, no
amortisation was made. The developments of systems not ready for the intended

use are expected to generate net cash flow to the Group, and no impairment loss

has been recognised.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
BZE2014F12 A3 BILER

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd) 18. BILEE#)
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group conducted a review of those Group's R2014% K20I135F 12A318 A&
intangible assets, which are not ready for the intended use. 2R HEAEEREASCHETLE
E o
The recoverable amount is determined from value in use calculations. The key el BEIRFEABEASESE - &
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, AEE:TENERERBREFRITEX
the new products’ growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct HEREERLELRS TS AH
costs during the period that cash flow forecasts are made. Management estimates BEBREERANBHES - &8
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the BRARMEEMEYHSEREER
time value of money and the risks specific to the intangible assets. The growth rates EHRELEERSRR T A R ET
are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs GBI R - ERRENTEERTE
are based on past experience and expectations of future changes in the market. AL - EEREEXTINEH IR
BRELSRRTISHRKREEHHTED
fEH -
For impairment purpose, the Group prepared cash flow forecasts based on financial HREMES @ AEEREBESEEREM3
budgets approved by management covering a 3-years period, taking into account FHREAM ANV RBEERER S TS
the anticipation of further expansion of 3G and 4G market in which the intangible BA TERIEHMEFEEZEN
assets are developed for. TEHI 3G E— HIBKR R AG TS o
As at the end of the reporting period, any reasonably possible change to key RERAR  BEMEABERR
assumptions applied are not likely to cause the recoverable amounts to be below ERAIE A REE B A A b2 B ]
the carrying amount of intangible assets. WEIEBENENEENREE -
INVENTORIES 9. #E&
2014 2013
20145 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFT
Raw materials R 126,343 100,094
Work-in-progress & m 50,802 66,403
Finished goods UK 281,546 223,829
Less: write-down on inventories T EHR (7,322) (3930)
451,369 386,396
BELBRERRLE
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20.

132

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20 EZREMEWRRRR

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 /&R 575,022 609,954
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (7.519) (6,056)
567,503 603,898
Notes and bills receivable LS 571,214 204,109
Rental and utility deposits & kfisike 706 1352
Advance to suppliers ) FE B B K 22,310 16,369
Value added tax receivable R E B 1,681 24,893
Other receivables and deposits H o eI AR S ik & 27416 22,049
1,190,830 872,670

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REGEEEEE)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T ARBTT
Balance at beginning of the year FHEERR 6,056 2,143
Allowance for doubtful debts REREHE 1,463 3913
Balance at end of the year FEAERR 7,519 6,056

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately RMB7,519,000 (201 3:
RMB6,056,000), which have defaulted on payment. The Company considers that
the recoverability of these receivables is low and therefore allowance for bad and
doubtful debts has been provided. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

The Group offers credit terms generally accepted in the antenna system, base
station RF subsystem and coverage extension solution manufacturing industry to
its trade customers, which range from 30 to 240 days (2013: 30 to 240 days), for
a significant number of the Company's products. For the Group's major customers
which are network operators and domestic and overseas wireless network solution
providers with good reputation and repayment records, a longer credit term may
be extended to them, depending on price, the size of the contract, credibility and
reputation of them. Amounts due from these major customers as at 31 December
2014 amounted to approximately RMB420,389,000 (2013: RMB507,975,000),
representing 74.1% (2013: 83.5%) of trade receivables (before making allowance
for doubtful debt) as at 31 December 2014. In order to manage the credit
risks associated with trade receivables effectively, credit limits of customers are
evaluated periodically. Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts
research on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the potential
customer's credit quality. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the high ranking record attributable to their corresponding research on the

creditworthiness.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BIEERE

20. B REMBWERARE)

AEBETEBRLELTEOARE
7,519,000 (20134 : AR¥ 6,056,000
TT)RBERNRES S ERER B
WRER - ARBRAKEZE K
HEMRETK  MEMRRERR
e AEEHEREERZEERD
B o

AEERESEFPIRHERGEER &
AT RGRBEEL R REETT
ELTEREXNEES  KARKE
EmBOEESHN TI0E2408(2013
F:30240H)EH- BREKE
B RBERIMNERBR IR RILE
BEABRUBERNRCHNAE
BErZxF  niERHRENEER
B BTER ARAE AEEF
MERERBEME - RN20I4F 12
A3IA BRBEBEFORENA
A K #420,389,00070(2013F : AR
#507,9750007C ) © 1520144 12 B
3JIBEKRE ZER(EHRERHER)
B 74.1%(2013 % : 835%) © BHWE
BEHEENESEFEBNEERR
ARREHHEFPNEERBETT
- AEBEAEATEEA  H
ERENBEPHEALERIHER
FHEEEZ RELABEERS -
EARBRTERENEKE SER
KBS =T

BELERERAF
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd) 20. BEREMERESZ)
ATARERBRZEZBEORE
WEZERNREEER)NERR D

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade receivables net of

impairment losses at the end of the reporting period:

i
2014 2013
20145 2013F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
0to 30 days 0&30H 287,199 320,397
31 to 60 days 31 260H 91,809 96,823
61 to 90 days 61 Z=90H 27,970 10,278
91 to 120 days 91&120H 39,493 13,434
121 to 180 days 121 £ 180 H 24,458 15837
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 96,574 147,129
567,503 603,898

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of notes and bills receivables

at the end of the reporting period:

ATRREBPRREZBHFE

WRERRER DT

2014 2013
2014 F 20134

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBETIT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 133,998 49,138
31 to 60 days 312 60H 88,100 46810
61 0 90 days 612908 113,064 39,274
91 to 120 days 91ZE120H 70,579 33,570
Over 120 days B8 120 B 165,473 35317
571,214 204,109

1 34 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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EZREMBEYRERRE)
EBHEY BRERNEKE SRR

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

Aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

20.

Rl DT

2014 2013

20145 20134

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 12,706 1,659

31 to 60 days 31 260H 633 349

61 to 90 days 61 £290H 357 1,005

91 to 120 days 9121208 1,303 1,098

121 to 180 days 121 2180 H 22 27

Over 180 days 88 180 B 9,688 2,095

Total 24,709 6,233
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. REEMEREERNZEEHER

The Group's trade and other receivables of RMB83,454,000 (2013:
RMB95,070,000), were denominated in USD, EUR and HKD, foreign currencies of

the respective group entities.

) o

FEENERESERAARE
83454000 7T (20134 : AR¥ 95070000
) MEEEESEMIINERT - B
TLRETTIIE

BUHERERAT
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21.

136

PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/BANK BALANCES AND

CASH

The Group's pledged bank balances represent bank deposits with original maturity
ranging from 3 months to 6 months and carry fixed rate interest of 0.35% per
annum during the year (2013: 0.35% per annum). They are mainly pledged to banks

to secure bills payables of the Group.

The Group's bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank deposits which carry
interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.385% per annum

during the year (2013: 0.001% to 0.385% per annum).

Certain of the Group's pledged bank balances and bank balances and cash with an
aggregate amount of RMB252,839,000 (2013: RMB220,013,000) were denominated
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the international market.
The government of the PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions

imposed by the government of the PRC.

Certain of the Group's pledged bank balances and bank balances and cash of
RMB8,828,000 (2013: RMB34,748,000), were denominated in USD, EUR and HKD,

foreign currencies of respective group entities.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2014
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. ESRHEMEMERMR
2014 2013
20145 20135
RMB’000 RMB' 000
AR¥TR ARBFTT
Trade payables e B 58 552,683 438,260
Notes and bills payable N RIE 297,502 217,870
Payroll payable BRTIE 39,181 20,839

Payable for purchase of property, BEVE BEX

plant and equipment AR 1 B0 FE A5 BR K 57,586 16,667
Value added taxes payable FERT B (AT 18,775 22,091
Receipt in advance TEWGRIE 14,023 39,176
Accrued expenses HIRER 12,725 11,638
Others HAth 7,081 8291
999,556 774,832

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade payables at the end

REFHPRREZAHHOENE S

of the reporting period: BRREERE AT -
2014 2013
20145 20135
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 97,946 93,353
31 to 60 days 3IE60H 113,724 [T
61 to 90 days 61 290 H 105,381 60,572
91 to 180 days 912 180H 176,022 114,286
Over 180 days #8180 H 59,610 58938
552,683 438,260

Typical credit term of trade payables ranges from 60 to 120 days.

ENEZRROEEH —REEZ 60
HZI120H -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd)
The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of bills payables at the end

of the reporting period:

22. EFREMESRRE)

RERPRZEZAMFANRERIE
HRRE AT -

2014 2013
2014 5 20134
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBETT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 93,826 10,861
31 to 60 days 3I260H 72,888 109,679
61 to 90 days 61 290 H 32,108 8,18l
Over 90 days #3890 B 98,680 89,149

297,502 217,870

Typical credit term of bills payables ranges from 90 to 180 days.

Certain of the Group's other payables of RMB451,000 (2013: RMB708,000) were

denominated in foreign currencies of respective group entities.

1 38 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2014
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BANK BORROWINGS 23. MITERX
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
Categories ARBT R ARETT

Short-term bank borrowings: R ERIRTTIA X -

— Unsecured fixed rate borrowings —EEREEER (a) 108,000 55,000
— Unsecured floating rate borrowings —EHFZEER (b) = 12,194
— Secured fixed rate borrowings —FEMAELER (@] 138,018 =
Shown under current liability RngaEET 25 246,018 67,194

(@  The unsecured fixed rate borrowings carried at the rate of 5.60% to 7.60%
per annum (2013: 6.00% to 6.60%) which is denominated in RMB.

(b)  The unsecured floating rate borrowings carried at a rate of London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 2% for the year ended 31 December 2013
which is denominated in USD.

(c)  The second fixed rate borrowing were secured by notes receivable carried
at a rate from 5.46% to 5.85% per annum which were denominated in RMB.
The related notes receivable were discounted with recourse and therefore
they had not been derecognised. Detail of transfer of financial assets are set

out in note 27.

ERITEBEROEFEAS5.60
B E760E(2013F : 600E &
6.60E )5t E  LARE:HE -

R E ZE20I13F12A318 1k F

E - EERT R BTIRRBRT
R 37 B R T fm BURTT R R A

BRIE I EEFIEHA - bl
£7T5HE -

AEREERRFTARKRRT

A ZERRERFEF X
A546EE585E - AAREE

{8 - HEREREAGENER
Ti® RS YERKIER -5
HEZTREENFFENME
27 °
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24,

25.

140

DEFERRED INCOME 24. EEWKA
Deferred income represents non-recurring government grants received for EIE WA S B W B FEAS B M BT f B
acquisition and improvement of property, plant and equipment. The deferred 2 ARWEREEYE BELR
income is released to the profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant %o RIEW AL E E R TasT Al E
assets. Movements of deferred income during the years are as follows: FEBEABIRE FRNEEKRAN
BEWT -
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTT
Government grant related to assets HEERENBAREE
At beginning of the year REA) 8,346 6712
Additions NE = 2,400
Released to profit or loss REEREEA (962) (766)
At end of the year RER 7,384 8,346
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 25. RDFRAE
Number of shares Issued capital
RHHE ERITRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014F 2013%F 2014%F 20135
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares shares shares
EBR ERK LER B
’000 '000 usD usb
TR T ey e
Ordinary shares of USD0.000001 each FA%0.000001 &L LB
Authorised: EE
At beginning and end of the year RENRER 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000.00 2,00000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At beginning of the year REA 812,201 807,820 812.20 807.82
Exercise of share options TR R 3,620 4,381 3.62 438
At end of the year RER 815821 812,201 815.82 81220

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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P N & NE )

Issued capital

2014 2013
20135 20026
Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares
Equivalent Equivalent
RMB RMB
ARW T AR®T
Issued and fully paid ERITRHE
At beginning of the year REH] 5,685.98 5,65891
Exercise of share options TR R 22.18 27.07
At end of the year RER 5,708.16 5,685.98

Issued capital shown in the consolidated statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014 and 3| December 2013 was rounded to RMB6,000 and

RMB6,000 respectively.

There is no movement of authorised ordinary share during the two years ended 3|

December 2014.

R2014% 12431 B 20139 12 A3
ARSI RKRIIREE EAT
RS RIARARE 6000 T RARE
6,000 7C °

HZE2014F 1283 BIEMEFER
T LR EEE) o
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26.

142

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share options were granted on |5 January 2003 (2003 Option™), 31 August 2005
(2005 Option”) and 23 December 2013 (2013 Option") for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on |5
January 2013, 31 August 2015 and 22 December 2023 respectively. Under the
share option schemes of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company
may, from time to time, grant share options to an individual consultant or advisor

who renders or has rendered bona fide services to the Company.

At 31 December 2014, the number of ordinary shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under 2003 Option, 2005 Option and
2013 Option was 46,460,250 (2013: 50,080,750), representing 5.69% (2013: 6.17%)

of the total ordinary shares in issue at end of the reporting period.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. Options may be exercised
at any time from 12 months after the date of grant of the share options to the
tenth anniversary of the date of grant. For 2013 option, options may be exercised
after the completion of relevant vesting period to the tenth anniversary of the date

of grant.

All 2003 option and 2005 option are exercisable as to 25% of the total number of
options on the first anniversary date of grant, and as to the remaining 75% in 36
subsequently equal monthly instalments commencing on the last day of the month

following the month of the first anniversary date of grant.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2014
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

30% of total number of options of 2013 Option (2013 Option A") are exercisable
on the second anniversary date of grant, 30% of total number of options of 2013
Option (2013 Option B") are exercisable on the third anniversary date of grant
and the remaining 40% of total number of options of 2013 Option (“2013 Option
C") are exercisable on the fourth anniversary date of grant. In addition, 2013
Option is also subjected to the performance condition of the Group and individual

employee to exercise.

26.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 3| December 2014
HZE2014F12A31 BIEERE

URBEZANRE (#E)

2013 4F 5 AR #E O B AR RE 4R B AN 30%
(MOBFEEREADITRAEEARE
“RBEFHETE  2013FBRAER
PR AR 2R A 30% (2013 FEARAER]) AJ
RELBHE=ERFAMIE M@
2013 F BB IR AE R AR M 4R 2O R T 40%
(MOIBFEREC)AIRFLAME
B A S B HRAT(E © BN - 20135 F8
RETAFEASEREBEENE
RIGHEFAIITE

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

BRENABEENFENOT

Fair value

at grant date

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period Exercise price RuAH

HBIREER R A BEY g e HATE

2003 Option 15/0112003 15/01/2003 to 14/01/2007 15/01/2004 o 14/01/2013 RMBI.76 RMB0.9S

2003 FREME 2003%F 1 A 158 WREIAISEZE WHEIAISEE ARE 1760 ARE09ST
2007F 1 A 148 013F | A 148

2005 Option 31/08/2005 31/08/2005 to 30/08/2010 3110812006 o 30/08/2015 RMB3.66 RMBI 36

2005 FEEME 20058 A31 B 2005F8A31BZE 2006%E8 B3I HE ARE3r AR
20108 A30H 2015%F8A30H

2013 Option A 23/120013 231122013 t0 22/12/2015 231122015 t0 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBOS |

2013 FEERRIE A 013F 128238 WI3EIABEE WISEIABEE AREI109T  ARKOSIT
W0I5E128228 WREI1ANA

2013 Option B 23/12013 23/1212013 10 22/12/2016 23/1212016 10 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBOS |

2013 FEERHER 2013 12AB3H W3ENABEE W6ENABEER ARE 109 AREOSIT
WI6E12828 03128208

2013 Option C 23/120013 23/1212013 0 22/12/2017 23/1202017 t0 2211212023 RMBI.09 RMBOS |

2013 FEfRHE C 013E 128 23A WRENABBEE WI7ENABBE AREI109T  AREOSIT
W0I7F128228 023F 128208
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26.

144

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 26. URHBEZFANRG (#E)
In respect of the 2005 Option exercised during the year, the weighted average FERBITER 2005 FHERENS
share price at the dates of exercise is HKDI.76. In respect of the 2003 option RITE B BRI METFIIRER 17678
and 2005 option exercised for the year ended 3| December 2013, the weighted o RN EE203FE12A3IBIESE
average share price at the dates of exercise are HKD0.89 and HKDO0.96 J& B 1710 #2003 F BE AR #E & 2005 F
respectively. RIEMS - N7 B Br ETFH KR
BRI /R0.89 BT 096 BT °
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options held by TREZEEBEBRALTEENARN A
eligible persons: AR RER R E) -
2014 2014 F
Outstanding at
Outstanding at 31.12.2014
1.1.2014 Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired R2014E
R2014E  duringtheyear  duringthe year  during the year during the year 12A318
Option type BRESR I|BIREATE  REARE  REARK  RERTE  RERER HALTHE
2005 Option 2005 FERE 6940750 - — (3620500) — 3320250
2013 Option A WI3EHEREA 12942000 — - — — 12942000
2013 Option B WI3EHRER 12,942,000 - — - - 12,942,000
2013 Option C 013FEMHEC 17,256,000 = = = = 17,256,000
50,080,750 = = (3,620,500) = 46,460,250
Exercisable at the end ARERTTE
of the year 46,460,250
Weighted average IEFATEE RMBI.0312 RMBO.6655 RMBI.0597
exercise price ARE 103127 ARE 06655 AR¥ 1059710

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 26. URHBEZFANRG (#E)
2013 2013 F
QOutstanding at QOutstanding at
[.12013 Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired 31.122013
R0I3F  duingtheyer  duringtheyear  duringtheyear  during the year R013E
|AIA RER RER RER RER 128318
Option type BRI RATTE it R i B WAL
2003 Option 2003 FERARE 1,619,000 - - (1,619,000) — —
2005 Option 2005 FE M 9,702,250 - — (2761,500) — 6940750
2013 Option A WI3EHEREA — 12,942,000 - — — 12942000
2013 Option B WI3EHRER - 12,942,000 — - - 12,942,000
2013 Option C WI3FHEREC — 17,256,000 — — - 17,256,000
11,321,250 43140000 — (4380500) — 50080750
Exercisable at the end ARERTE
of the year 50,080,750
Weighted average IEFEHE RMBOS 12! RMBOS38 RMBI.0312
exercise price AEE06121 7T AR%05381 T ARE 103127

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB5,868,000 (2013: Nil) for the year
ended 3| December 2014 in relation to share options granted by the Company.

5,868,000 (20134 : &) o

EBLBRERAE
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22/

146

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 27. BRETREE

The Group discounted notes receivable to banks for cash proceeds. If the notes REBRBE LB HRBERRITINRE
receivable are not paid at maturity, the banks have the right to request the Group WRE - MEREERERAZ
to pay the unsettled balance. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks RITEEEBRAEBE XN REB R
and rewards relating to these notes receivable, it continues to recognise the full He AR AEBTEFEZEREKE
carrying amount of the notes receivable and has recognised the associated cash BEEENEXNERKkDHERELE
received on the transfer from discounting the notes receivable as secured bank AREBRERARKZEN 28T
borrowings (note 23). These financial assets are carried at amortized cost in the B YEEEENREREENE I
Group's consolidated statements of financial position. HEREERLSBEEBRITER(HFE

23) - ZEEMEERBHERARASE
EiR A M BN RIIE -

At the end of 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the notes receivable M2014F 12431 B B & EER®
that have been transferred but have not been derecognised and the amount of the RHEWZENEMENMEEAES
associated liabilities are as follows: IR
2014 2013
2014 %F 2013F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBETT

Notes receivable discounted to banks RRTIREE 2 RERE
with full recourse RN E R 138,018 —
Associated secured bank borrowings HARERRTER 138,018 —

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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OPERATING LEASE 28. REHE
The Group as lessee FEEER/REEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make the RERAR  REBECRBEEINLA
following future minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises under non- TR—BEEALTIT AR HER
cancellable operating leases with outsiders and a related party, which fall due: ERYAFZAMERYES AR T @
R ZI AR RRERS
2014 2013
2014 20135
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTT
Within one year —FR 4,278 6,170
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFNF(EEMEREEAN) 6,084 —
10,362 6,170
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of one to five year. MEMEmE @ —2hFHBRN
MEEE -
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. BREE
2014 2013
20144 20135
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided BB EED % « BE &
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of ~ FRERE R NERB LA
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment B HRRBENERFAX 15,850 54,564
EBLBRERAE 147
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the local goverment. MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI
Xian are required to contribute 14%, 20% and 20%, respectively, of the payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of these entities with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the

specified contributions.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted to
RMB2 1,285,000 (2013: RMBI 1,881,000) for the year ended 3| December 2014.

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) During the year, the Group has the following significant transactions with
Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd. (I TT A 4k 5t iBL
BBRAT]) ('SZWS") which is controlled by a group of common controlling
shareholders of the Company and SZWS. (details of which are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 4 December 2009).

The significant transaction between the Group and SZWS are as follows:

30.

1.

BIKBERGTE

AEERES I B R INER
ERRABMNFTENKE - BELR
I B ELERELALZED BET
BRCANK] 14% ~ 20% N 20% [ 3R AR A8 F
FFEERERIERBANES - ZF
NEIRRAE MG B A EERNED

HEMRK

B ZEW4FNA3AB LEFEE: K
SEELHNRABRGFEHRRAA
R #212850007C(2013F : AR ¥
11,881,0007C) °

BEALRS

@) RER - REBEEZFIIHHELE
TRBREERAA(RISE L
BETUATEARS - Fl4
FBBAN R KRR AN —
R R AT S (B @R
B E R A R & R 2009F 12 A 4
AHEOBRER) o

ARBEFERBETHERK
RHMT

2014 2013

2014 %F 20135

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

Nature of transaction REME AR® T AREFT
Rental expenses MeX 1,332 1215
2014 2013

20145 20134

RMB’000 RMB'000

Related party balances REALHER ARBT T ARETT
Other receivables HoAth & U AR 3K 72 72
Other payables HoAth FE 7 BR 3K — 101

Note: The balance is unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.

1 48 MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 3. BEAXRZ(E)
(b)  Operating lease commitments (b) REHEERIRE
As disclosed in note 27, at the end of the reporting period, the Group was W27 FEEE - RERDY
committed to make the following future minimum lease payment in respect * NEBBEIRBEEZRYIELEB
of a rented premise under non-cancellable operating lease with SZWS, IR R k=)
which fall due: PR AR 0 3 S2 AT R T B 9 51
MARKERS

2014 2013

20145 20135

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

Within one year —FR 1,331 202

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZETF(EEMFREEN) 3,993 —
5,324 202

The lease is negotiated and rental is fixed for lease term of five years. METHEMmE - AFHEHNDN

MEEE °

(c)  Compensation of key management personnel () FEEEABNERH
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management EENTEEEEHEMKERNS
were as follows: Bzn R -
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBETT

Short-term benefits 2 HIRR A 10,976 4019
Post-employment benefits BERR 12 13 A 120 160
11,096 4179
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having EERFETHRAENFTFHIOR
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. BEARBLTIZBEMETE -
The retirement benefits scheme contributions of one director were paid by B E2014F 12 A31 B EMEF
SZWS for the two years ended 3| December 2014 B —BEZ0RKENGEIH

R RSB -

BUHERERAT
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
As at the end of both reporting periods, the particulars of the Company's

subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued and fully
paid registered

capital/share capital

32. AATEEFATHE
BHEMEZRBER NQFTFRAF
BT

Equity interest

attributable

Place and date ERTRAREM to the Group
of establishment/ BX/RE KEBEERE
Name of subsidiary incorporation 2014 & 2013 2014 & 2013 Principal activities
FRAER LM R R B WI4FRN13F 04FRN13F FTREHR
MOBI Shenzhen PRC RMB220,000,000 100%  Production and sale of
FELL RO 12 August 1999 AB# 220,000,000 7T antennas and
H radio frequency subsystems
199948 A 12 HERIBERENER
BHRTER
MOBI Jian PRC RMB33,000,000 100%  Production and sale of
BLERO 23 May 2006 AR # 33,000,000 7T antennas and
H radio frequency subsystems
20065 A 230 HERIBERENER
BABTESR
MOBI Xian @ PRC RMB 120,000,000 100%  Production and sale of
e i de 29 April 2008 AE ¥ 120,000,000 7T antennas and
H radio frequency subsystems
200854 A 29 R HERIBERENER
BHRTER
MOBI HK @ Hong Kong HKD10,000,000 100%  Trading of antennas and radio
BLEEC |5 December 2010 10,000,000 7T frequency subsystems
&R RENEBRESTAT
2106128 158 RGBS
(1) MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI fian are directly held by the Company and wholly foreign- () BhRIIRELEZEADF RSP

owned enterprises in the PRC.

SNEBELFERRES -

() MOBI Xian is wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the PRC. Q) EuHAZAETBEMNINEGBELE -
(3)  MOBI HK s directly held by the Company. () ELBEBHARREERE-

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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33. AT BEMRREER

2014 2013
20145 20135
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTF T

Non-current Assets FRBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RFRABIRIELEMIRE 312,466 306,598
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMF 1 B 58 188,593 180,440
501,059 487,038

Current Assets REEE
Other receivables H i I BR 3N 40,395 64,883
Bank balances and cash IRITER RS 1,499 1,047
41,894 65,930
Current liabilities REaE

Trade and other payables H Ath 8 1~ B K 1,298 11,793
Dividend payable FERTAR B 679 677
1,977 12,470
Net Current Assets REEEFH 39,917 53,460
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERREBEE 540,976 540,498

Capital and Reserves BRAR #E
Share capital (note 25) PR A (P E 25) 6 6
Reserves M 540,970 540,492
Total equity R 540,976 540,498

BhHERERAT 151
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B3Y
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd) 33. AATABBRAFRE)
Movement in reserves RE2H
Share
option
reserve
Share Share (note 26)  Accumulated
capital premium  ERIRERE losses Total
BRx ROEE  (FEE2e) EHY ] At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETRT AR®TR
At | January 2013 R2013F1 /1R 6 545334 2593 (8,902) 539,031
Exercise of stock options TR RE — 3,268 (1,108) — 2,160
Loss and the total comprehensive ~~ FEBERZE
expenses for the year i 8% — — (693) (693)
At 3| December 2013 R2013F12A318 6 548,602 485 (9,595) 540498
Recognition of equity-settled HRAEREEARD R
share base payment £ BN = 5,868 — 5,868
Exercise of stock options TR R E — 3,155 (985) — 2,170
Profit and the total comprehensive
income for the year FEMNBRZEKALE = — 5364 5364
Dividend paid ERRE — (12924) — — (12924)
At 3| December 2014 R2014F 12831 A 6 538,833 6,368 (4231) 540976

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2014
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MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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www.mobi-antenna.com

EE Ltk B ER X F
MOBI Development Co., Ltd.

Add i3k C ARYITE L E SR AR E RN — B SR EE L KB
MOBI Building, 7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel E3 : 86-755-86186100

E-Mail # : public@mobi-antenna.com

Website #91it : www.mobi-antenna.com

P.C E#R : 518057
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